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I 1 ~u1y 3rd, 1912. 2 o'clock P.M.

jIU4

2 Defendant in court with counsel.

3

4 NEWM:,AN ESSICK on th e stan d for furth er

5 di rec t ex:aminati on •

6 • THE COURT: Are you ready to proceed, gentlemen?. .
7 llR ROGERS: We \vant ed Mr Appel.

8 THE COUR[': It We will we,i t a moment.

9 },{R ROGERS: Go ahead.

10 THE COURT:Q, All right. llr Rogers says he is ready to
"-

11 I proceed.

12 I MR FORD: Mr Essick, I will ask yon to look on th ese sheets

in the colttmn headed October 6, 1911 • and attract your

an<i ask you to state what that mark is and what signifi­

cance it has, if any?

MR ROGERS: Objected to as incompetent, irrelevant and

immaterial; calling for a conclusion or opinion, and no

fOttndation laid and hearsay.

13

14 I
151

I
16 I

171
18

19

attention to a
/

,.. mark made in red ink on the docum ent ~

20 THE COURT: Obj ection overruled.

21 MR ROGERS: Exc epti oh.

22 A The red ink ent~ is the initials of the bookkeeper

23 who balanced that account that night and checked it as __~

24 being correct.

251m FORD: What, if anything, does it indicate with re­

26 gard to the checks presented against the account up to



1 that time?

2 MR ROGERS: Obj ected to as calling for a conclusion or op-

3

4

5

6

imion, no fOtUldation laid, incompetent, irrel~ant and

innnatefial.

THE COURT: Obj ection overruled•
•
MR ROGERS: Exc eption.

7 A It indicates that the account has been balanced and

8 all checks and entries of that account f01Uld correct.

9 MR FORD: At the time that balance is s truck and that mark

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

261
I
I

is made'-- or, at the time that balance was struck and that

mark was made, what, if anythih g did it indicate vrlth

regard to the presenc e of th e bank book of th e depositor

in the bank, and the desire to have it balanced and the

ch~ks return eel?

MR ROGERS: . Objected to as incompetent, irrelevant and im­

material and not the best widence, no foundation laid.
, .

THE COURT: Obj ection overruled.

lIR ROGERS: Exc eption.

A Not conclusive evidence that the passbook was left,

but it probably was. We often balance accounts without

. the passbook being left.

MR BOGE'RS: Wai t a moment.

UR FORD: That may be stricken out, if you desire.

THE COURT: Strike it out.

!,m FORD: Have you any record of the lJank book being re­

turned?
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1 MR ROGERS: The same obj ection as last made.

2 Tlffi COURT: OVer ruled., Mr Ford, you may confer wi th th e

3 witness, if you desire to, but yOll should first ask per-

4 mission.

5

6

7

1m FORD: What I asked him for privately
•
mHE COURT: YOll are at liberty to do so, but you must

ask permission before you do so, 11'0~ will all underst and

8 precisely what is being done. V.hat is th e question -now?

9

10

l,rR FORD: I ask that permission. There is no question'

pending before th e court.

11 I THE COURT: All right, you may confer with the witness.
I

12 I :ME FORD: I am informed by the witness that to get the

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

receipts for bank books that h8\Te been balanced and indi­

c ati~ that the books have been returned, will take some

little time to hunt for. perhans counsel is willing to

stipulate wi thont making that search that the bank book

was returned, and all checks returned against that ac-

count.

~{R 'ROGERS: We offered to do some stipulating. We offer­

ed to stipnlate everything that counsel is desiring to

prove, or seemingly desiring to prove, and he refused t.the

stipulation, and, under the circumstances, we don,t feel

like stipulati~ a part of his case and we refuse. Let

him prove it.

UR FORD:

lation.

If the court please, I did not refuse any

I simply indic ated to th e court that I did
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1 think his stipulation was broad enough to cover all that

2 we sought, to prove by. this record this morning.

3 1m ?DARROW: Your Honor,'~ offered to stipulate every-

4 I thing they stated and further asked them if there was any-

5 thing else •

6

7

•THE COURT: That is quite true.

MR DARROW: If they want to take this time, it isn't we

8 who are doing it.

9 YR FORD: If the court please, there are certain teclmical

10 requiraments within the law with regard to corporations whm

11 requires certain things to be proved by testimony and not

12 by stipulation.

13 1.{R DARROW: There isn't anything in the IBM requiring eny-

14 thing of this sort to be proven in testimony. The stipu-

15 I lation covers it.

16 THE COURT: The court is not going to direct the District

17 Attorney how to prewent his case. The statement made by

Ur Darrow at this time is entirely inlCcordance with the

rec 0 rd thi s mo ming •.
MR FORD: Attracting yourattention to the column headed I

~
I

October 6th, 1911, and particularly to the figures I
"1000" in th e first sub-column of th e main column on that~

page, and between the 4th and 5th lines drawn laterally', "I

across the p2ge from the bottom, I will ask you what, if~

anything, the figure "1000" indicates on that page? '

1!R ROGERS: Obj ected to as im omp3 tent, irrel9Jiant and
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1

2

3

immaterial, calling for a conclusion or opinion, not the

best evidence, not made tIy the witn eas, anything purport­

ed to be made by him, nor any foundation laid.

4 THE COURI.': Overrul ad.

10. /' Q C' .And upon a c hook signed by • S. Darrow, Trustee?

A Yes sir.tee?

MR ROGERS: Exc ept ion.
-'"
A Indicates that there '\/vas a check for $1000 paid

/ against. th~t account on that day. ~,•.,.

MR FORD: Paid against the account of C. S. Darrow,' Trus- ,~

~~~

U
~
'"

5

6

7

8

9 '

11
I

12

13

14
I

15 I

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

125

261

I
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MR. APPEL. Wait a moment--we object upon the ground that

is not the way to prove the signature of a witness; it is

incompetent, irrelevant and immateria1 and no foundation

laid for proving the account, it appearing now from the

tes timony of th e witness that he was not the keeper of th e

MR. ROGERS. 1 call your Honor's attention to the fact

that he doesn't ask him if there was a check paid on that15

1

2

3

4

5

6 •account, and the only person that can prove the correctness
7 of it is the one who keeps the account or the one who

8 may know the facts upon which the entry was· made.

9 ~HE COlmT. ~verruled.

10 MR. APPEL. We except.

11 A Please read the question.

12 (Last question read by the reporter. )

13 \ A Yes, sir.

14

2s

evidence.

date, simply sa~ what does the mark indicate.

MR. FORD· That is true.

MR. ROGERS. What the mark indicates cer tainly cannot be

MR • FORD. Q Do you know whether or not that check--the

cheek for $1000 indicated by that entry is now in the

ession of ycur bank?

MR. APPEL. We 0 bj ect upon tte ground it is incoDlpeten t,

irrelevant and imrr,aterial for any purpose whatsoever, tha t

it assumes a fact rot testified to by tre witness, that·

assurres that the check of !'tir. Darrow was paid for $1000 a26

25

16

17

18

19

20
}

21

22

23

24
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the witness has not been shown to have any knowledge

Ci What, if anything, has been done wi tr.. that check? fit';:·=-r=:;!~

MR • APPEL. We object to that upon the same grounds stated,

and upon the further ground that no foundation has been

laid for the introduction of the evidence of the Witness

dI . '%A C. S.--

The same objection.

FORD. Q To whom?

ROGERS.

A

upon that SUbject.

THE COURT. Objection overruled.

MR· APPEL· We except.

Returned With all the other checks.

THE COURT· Overrul ed •

MR • APPEL. We except.

A What is the question again?

(Last question read by tpe reporter. )

A It is not.

I

in re~erence~to the signature on the check, the check i tselfl
I

has not been produced in evidence. He has been asked I

about an instrument not before the witness, not tendered,

under the provisions of the code, to the defense; incofu~

• petent, irrelevant and irnmater ial.

21

19
20;/ MR.

MR.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

P 11

12

13

14

15

16 I
17

18

22 A Excus e rre.

23 THE COUR T. Objection overruled.

MR. FORD· We now offer in evidence

24~/ A C. S. Darrow, Trustee. _ ...-----~------~.--

the offer for jus t a moment.
25

26



1 / MR. FORD. Q

2 of these two

3"711, I
1 attract your attention to the larger Sheet~

sheets, and particularly to the words opposite

3 the numeral 25 on the left hand side of the page and to the

4\ entries across the page opposite those figures, also to

5 entries on the second of these two docureents, which is

6 ,'marked at the top Wi th the words, "46" to the entr ies

7 oppos i te the figures "25" throughout that page and ask

8 if all of those items refer to transactions had concerning

9 the account of C. S. Darrow, Trustee?

10 MR· APPEL· Wai t a moment--we object to that question on the

11 ground no foundation has been laid for the purpose of provi _

12 the account or the correctness of the account by the witness'

13 that it appears in evidence he did not make the account and

14 it does not appear that he knows tl-e facts upon which the'

15 account was made, therefore, he is incompeten t to testify

16 to the correctness of it; upon the further ground it is

.!
t

17 incompetent, irrelevant and ilnmaterial for any purposes \

18 and hearsay.

!IIi • APPEL. We elic ept.20

19

21

THE COURT.

A yes.

Objection overruled.

22 / MR • FORD. We now offer in evidence these two documents

23 '
as exhibit 36. We offer that por tien of the documents

24 containing the i terns test if ie d to by the Witness. -
25

lIR • APPEL' We obj ect to it on tbe ground it is incompeten t,

26
irrelevant and imrraterial; no foundat ien has been laid



13 / Q What are they?

9 (rocument Dlarked. )

10 MR • FORD. Q I hand to you four slips of paper which 1

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

11

12 I

3712

the introduction of the n~tter offered in eVidence, that

it has not been proven correct or to be correct by the

keeper or the maker of the account or by any person

having actual knowledge of the facts; incorrpetent,

irrelevant and immaterial for any purposes, no foundation

laid.

THE COURT· Objection overruled.

MR· APPEL. We except.

have shown to the defendant in this case. Did you

ever see them before? A Yes, sir.

14 MR· ROGERS. We object to that question on the ground it

15 calls for a conclusion or opinion; incompetent, irrelevant

16 and imrraterial; no foundation laid; not the best evi-

17 dence.

18 THE COURT· Objection overruled.

19 MR • ROGERS. Exception.

20;." A They are lists of items received through the clearing

21;/ house onthe 6th of Last October from the First National

22 Bank.

23;/ Q Of Los Angeles? A Of Los Angeles.

24 Q And by the term "i terr,s" you used in ycur answer, is

25 that a technical term used in banking?

26 MR. APPEL· We obj ec t to tha.t as immatar ial •



These items?

3113

1 TEE COURT' Objection overruled.

2 MR • APPEL. We except.

3 MR • ROGERS· May 1 inquire if the wi tnesa madethose him-

4 a elf?

5 THE COURT· Yes, ask him.

6 • MR • ROGERS.Q Did you make those yourself? A

7 Q yea. A No, sir •

8 MR· ROGERS· Then, what are we getting here, not even the

9 man that made them?

10 MR. FORD. Just a moment--

II THE COURT. What is the objection?

12 I MR. ROGERS· We object to it as not the best evidence;
I

13 1 incompetent, irrelevant and irnrr:ater ial; no foundation laid.

14
1

15
1

16 I
17

18
1

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



1 MR FORD: The witness testified, if your Honor please,

2 that he was the cashier and tha t all of these docum ents

3 were made under his directions by his employes, and he

4 I knows them to be offIcial records of the bank, kept by

5 the bank in th e ordinary course of business.

6 • 1m ROGERS: The case of people 2gainst Blackman, 137 Cal.,

7

8

9

10

11
I

~
12 I
13 I

;
I 14

15 I
16 1

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26 I

I

if your Honor please, is all the citation necess~ under

such circumstances.

MR FORD: We will produce the man who made them, also,

your Honor.

MR APPEL: That would not justify them in introducing a

Witness who has no personal knowledge of those things.

As I understand the general tule,it is, an account can

be proven by a person who made it, mo knows the correct­

ness of it, mo knows what is meant by the figures

by a system of bookkeeping a third person, because he

knows the system of bookkeeping is not qualified to tes-

tify concerning the correctness 0 f the account.

THE COURT: The witness testified, it is true, this morn­

ing that certain papers he had, were made under his super­

vision, but he has hot so testified in regard to the docu­

ments now shown him.

I{R FORD: Perhaps th at is<:torrect. Perhaps! made a rnis-'

statement in that regard.

THE COURT: The obj action is sustained.

1m FORD: I have asked him if he lmew 'what they were; I
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1 have not asked to int roduc e them, but simply "'rished to

2 have them identifi eO. for the purpose of preliminary

3 ],m ROGERS: I move to s trike out the answer as a conclu­

4 I sion, and it has developed it is not the best evidence,

5 incompetent, no founi ation laid•

•6 T?..E COURT: The foundation is not laid and the answer is

7 stricken ou t.

8 ],fR ]OW: Read the last question.

9 (Last question read.)

10 ],{R roGERS: I did not refer to that. I referred to the an-

11 swer to th e question "What are they".

12 THE COURi': yes, that is the answer I had in mind.

13 Stricken out on the ground no foundation is leid.

14 MR ROGERS: We have offered to stipulate to the cor-

time.

M'R FORD: . There is no need of' going into that again.

rectness of the account. We stand ready to save this jurylS15
I

~~ I

18 1m ROGERS: TO show that the checks were paid, and to

19 stipulate to werything truthful about that rocount in.
20 every way. NoW, if COlIDselwants to waste a 'whole afternoon

21 in fussing arolmd \"li th these things, he is doing it at his

22 own risk and peril of error and over objection. If your

If counsel will permit th e VIi tness

Honor pleases, we renew our offer to stipul ate to any­

thing truthful to that rocount in the Commercial National

Bank to which yr Essick can truthfully.t estify.

MR FREDERICKS:

23

24

25

26 I
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1 testify--

2 1lR APPEL: He is not competent to testify.

3 MR ROGERS: We. do not like to have a steam roll er run over

4 I us.

5 THE COURT: Now, gentlemen, proceed•.
6 • MR FOrm: Referring now to the documentsyou now hold in

7 your hand, do you lalow by Whom they were made?

8 MRROGERS: Of your own knowledge, of course? A No sir.

9 MR FORD: Do you know in what department they were made?

10 YR ROGERS: The same obj ection, it. is incompetent, and if
-

11 he doesn't know by whom they were made, how does he know

12 in what department they were made?

13 MRDARROW: I think they might find that out uutside of th3

14 court room, and they should not take up everybody's time
I

15 investigating those things.

16 MR. ROGERS: We object to it on the ground it is incompe-

17 tent, irrelevant and innnaterial; no foundation laid; not

18 the best evidenc e. yr Essick does not know Who made

19 them, and how can he know in vmose department they were
-

20 made?

21 THE COURT: Obj ection sustained.

22 }!R FORD: If the court please, a banker who has testified

23 that he knows the employes who are working under his di-

24 rections, wouldcertain1y know in what department they were

25 made. Withdraw the question

26r~ Are th e papers whic h you

I

for a moment.

hold in your hands a part
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1 the fil es of th e bank, kept by the bank in th e 0 rdinary

2 course of business and. made in that bank on th e 6th day

3 of Bctober, 19l1?

4 1 MR .APPEL: Weobj ect to the question on the ground it is

5 incompetent, irrelevant; no foundation has been laid;

6 and upon the further ground that the witness has testified

7 that he does not know who made them, th erefore, he cannot

8 state in what department thE:y~re made or by whom they

9 ~re made, or whether they are in f ac t, of ficial records

10 of the bank, and if they were official records of the bank

11 they cannot prove themselves, inasmuch as they are not

12 document s whic h are made by law admissible in evidenc e as

13 official records.

14 MR FORD: Records kept by a bank in ordinary course of,

busin ess, are presumed under the law, to be correct.
- ,

MR APPEL: But not in a criminal case.

17 THE COURL': The question here is whether or not he knows

18 these papers are official r ecorcls.

1I.R ROGERS:· We are wasting time and wearing out this jury

a lot of fussing that can well be avoided.

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

1lR FREDERICKS: Then why do you make the obj ection?
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MR. ROGERS. Because, if your Honor pleases, if they wont

take a stipulation, if fu ey insist on proving it, if they

want to worry and wear out and take your Honor's tiffie,

let them do it by legal methods. They do not know how, if

your Honor pleases, and they have not known how all the time

·they have been examining this witness.

Read the question.

Objection sustained.

Q Do ycu know whether or not they are a part

THE COURT. Now, Mr. Rogers.

(Question read. )

THE COURT·

MR • FORD.

of the records of the bank made in the ordinary course of

business on the 6th day of October, 1911, and kept inthe

bank since that time as a part of the records

MR. ROGERS. Of 1}1.~ witness's own know} edge, I take it.

THE COURT. That is the question, does he know.

MR. ROGERS. Of hie own knowledge.

THE COURT. That question should be yes or no; you know or

you do not know, one or the other-

A May it please the court, part of that question ..

the answer would be yes and part of the answer no, if 1

explain.

THE COURT. Read the question again ::lnd aee if it isneces­

sary to make an explanat ion.

(Last question read by the reporter. )

A 1 can only repeat, your Honor, part is yea and part

no.

15

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

p

B
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THE COURT· All right. What part is yes?

when those were made? A No, sir.

through the clearing house. These were not made in our
•

You don't know whether they

You were not in the First National Bankask a question?

bank, they were made inthe First National Bank.

MR. ROGERS. If your Honor please, 1 submit, if 1 may

Q You didn't see them made?

were made there or somewhere else, except what appears on

. them, isn't that true? A Is that the ques tiQ1 '?

THE COURT· Yef} that is the question.

1

I
7

8

9

10

11

121
13

You were not in the First National Bank on that day?

A What is the question.Isn't that true?Q

No, sir.A

14 II MR. ROGERS.

15 i . Q
I

16 .

17

18

19

20 I)

21

22

Q And you didn't see them made? A No, sir.

Q All you are testifying to is just the statement, isn't

that so? A 1 am testifyirg that these carre in a sealed

envelope from the First National Bank.

Q Did you see them come from that bank? A No, sir.

Q Did you see them placed in a sealed envelope in the

23 First National Bank? A No, air·

24 Q Did you open them yourself? A No, sir.

25 MR. FORD. Q Were these documents received in a package

26 containing the checks corresponding with these items and
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2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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purporting to come from the First National Bank on the 6th

day of October) 1911?

MR. APPEL. Your Honor, the witness says he didn't receive

them, didn't get them. Now, we object to that because the

foundation for him t~stifying in reference to that is clean

out of the record. It is e1ilJlinated; he don't know; he

has no personal knowledge of ttose things. He might as

well give an opinion or conclusion, it is true, from.a

custom and system of the bank, but in this kind of cases, i

must be absolute knowledge of the witness. A man in tre

course of business might as weI1 testify that in his opinio

this is all right, but that would be very hearsay,. from

what he has been told, from the mere fact of seeing them

there, something of that kind, but he certainly :i3 not

competent to testify to that.

MR • FORD. If the Court please, 1 desire to show by this

wi tness--

MR • ROGERS. We object to any offer of proof. The

Supreme Court of this state said that the DistDict Attorney

has no right to make an offer to prove what his Witness

has been held incompetent to prove.

MR • FORD. 1 am not going to offer. 1 am stating the

object to the court in order that the court may rule on it.

in the ligh t of that obj ect •

UR • ROGERS. Exception.

MR. FORD. We purpose to prove, the Court please, that



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
I

~I
13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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he was the manager of that bank and all those departments,

expert with and familiar with the operations of that depart

ment, and that he has nade examination of all the records

of that bank and from that examination the bank records

show, whether they be true or false, that will be a matter

to be connected up by other testimony, the bank records

show that the thousand dollar check drawn against the accou t
I

of C. S. Darrow Trustee, came to the bank enclosed with

this list of items from the First National Bank on that

day, and we have already secured in evidence the testirrony

of WJ. Franklin that he did deposit a check in the First

National Bank signed by Mr. Darrow, or M4 Darrow had written

it out and given it to him



1

2

3

4'

5

6

3722
1

That he deposi ted it in the First National Bank. and that

it was drawn on some oth er bank afid th e testimony 0 f Mr

Essick already shows that the c heck of $1000 was dra\m

against the account of Mr Darrow, or C. S. Darrow, Trus­

tee, on th e 6th day of October. 1911. and we now wish to

show by the wi tness that he has examined the books and

7 records of hisb ank. It makes no difference Vlhether they

8 were made by him. if these records were made outside. of

9 the bank and came enclosed with e list of items, he can

10 state that fact •
. He has

11 THE COU~: /(' Stated it.
I

12 I 1m FORD: Then we Vlill put on other witnesses to show that

13 the i tern referred to -- v: e will put on wi tnesses from th e

14 First National :Bank to show that vvas the one that was sent

15 on to this bank.

16 1m ROGEi~S : yr Darrow offered to stipulate, if your Honor

I

I
theyare taking up this time, either killiI1B, deliberately, I

- I

ior motive and soma unlmovm reason, if your Honor please.

here wi th e lot of adding machine slips coming from cl ear-

or for some other reason. and they are fussing arounl

21 I
22

23

17 please. tha t the check for $1000 to lfr Franklin \Vas dra'\\n

18 against the COntrnarcial National Bank md was charged again t

19 his account and paid by that bank. NOW, for some ulter-

20

24 ir..g house No .3. That is the number of th e Commercial

Natiol1\al,' Bbnk wi th the clearing house.

THE COUHT: I an going to sustain the obj ection. Ob-
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j ~tion sustained to the present form of the question.

:MR FORD: Referring now to the items which you hold in

your hand -- I will ask you -- calling your ~tention

to four $1000 -- four places where the figure "1000"

occurs, I Will ask you if on that day your bank received. -

four checks fram. th e First National Bank, each for the

sum of $lOOO?

MR ROGERS: That is obj ec ted .to upon the ground that' th e

wi tness has no right to refer to th e document, they haVing

been rejected in evidence, no foundation for them, they

are not made by him or under his direction or with his

knowledge, no foundation has been laid, incompetent, ir­

relevant and immaterial, and~ again offer tostipulat e as
•

we have heretofore indicated in order to save time and

trouble for. this ju:ry.

MR FORD: If the court please, we haven't Y'Ei, offered the

document. We are t:rying to get all " that the witn ass
I

knows about the docummt, end when the prOp:lr time comes,

we will introduce them, :if theyare admissible.

:MR ROGERS: One cannot refresh his recollection

MR FORD: With regard to th e other proposition, thEir sti
-

ulation, VIe rec;ard, Whether we are right or wrong, it

matters not, we are thoroughly satisfied the law requires
-

us to put in this feet by testimony. Now, we may be wrong

in entertaining that vievr, but entertaining that

will be useless for couns el to or fer further stipulation
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in regard to that matter, and if the matter is of no im­

portance to them. md they desire to save time) they c an do

so by withholding their obj ections and I will state here

that our only obj ect is such as the figures themselves.
indic~te, and that there is no other ulterior object.

Our only motive is our beliEjl~ that under the law we must

int roduc e this matter by testimony.

MR ROGERS: Then, if counsel will produce proper testi­

mony in l~al fashion. if your Honor please, and he will

do it directly, we will not obj ect, but we do obj rot to

the manner of its introduction and to introducing it by

incompetent proof and proof for which there is no founda­

tion. We stand ready at any time when the prop er evidenc e

is brought fowward toa1mit it. if theYVlmlt the evidence

admitted, if they wontt take our stipulation. I never

heard of a law that a stipulation. solemnly made in op En

court. would not bind. but there may be some such Imr.
f

MR FREDERICKS: There is a lavv that an accomplice is to be

corroborated by testimony. There is a law no man can be

convicted ex:cept by sworn testimony of \vitnesses; that is

a constitutional law.

MR APPEL: And those docmnents which are offered in

evidence is directly against the proposition stated by Mr

Fredericks himself.

THE COUR!.': Read the question. (Discussion.)

(Last question read by thOe reporter.)
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1 i· THE COURT: O'bj ec t ion OJ errul ed. A No.

2 MR FORD: How many entries 11000 entries are there there.

3 MR APPEL: Wait a moment. We object upon the ground

4 there is no foundation laid. He is asking him concerning

5 the contents of an instrument \\h.ich are not inaridence,

I

6

7

•is mot the best evidence; it is incfompetent, irrelevant

and immaterial for any purpose whatsoever.

8 MR FORD: I will look at them myself, your Honor. I"may

9 have been -- my recollection may be at fault. If the

10 court will permit me to ask the wi tness a question.
,

12.1· 1m FORD:

13 i October,

14

15 I
16

1

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

11 THE COU'Rl': yes.

How many ch roks did you, on the 6th dey of

1911, receive from th e First National Bank?
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MR. APPEl.. Wait a moment. We object upon the ground

sonally has no knowledge. He can only testify, 1 suppose,

from what he saw on the books and that would be hearsay,

then testify to facts from that. 1t is jus t the same as if

he had been told by someone or someone had written to bim

and informed him of those facts. He cannot claim to have

A rean cannot go and look at his books and

A State the question again.

Q Have you any knowledge--any remenbrance at all about

the matter--are you aided in giving an answer to that ques­

tion from your own personal knowledge of the facts or siffiply

from refreshing your memory and gaining information from

knowledge--

THE COURT. Objection overruled.

MR. APPEL. Let me add to the objection that it is incom­

petent) irrelevant and immaterial and no foundation laid and

hearsay.

THE COlmT. Objection overruled.

MR. DARROW. Just one ffioment please.

MR. APPEL- May we ask him a question, your Honor?

THE COURT· Yes, you may.

MR. APPEL. QAre you testifying from personal knowledge

or from an inspeotion of the documen t in your bank or in

your hand?

that the witness has already s ta ted) your Honor, that he di1

not receive themhimself, that he didn't open the envelope,

that he didn't see them put in the envelope, that he per-

your Honor.
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1 a document in your hand and from inspection of the records

2 J / in your bank? A My information comes solely from an

3 I· inspection of the records of our bank.

4 Q Then you have no personal knowledge at all of the fact?

5 / A Of this question which has been asked me?

6. ~ Yes. A No personal knOWledge other than the records

7 of the bank show.

8 MR. APPEL' Then we Object, your Honor, to the question and

9 to the evidence upon the ground stated in my objection to

10 the question. 1 cannot go in my books down here and

11 cOILe in court and testify to facts that are in the books.

12 1 didn't rrake the entry, 1 have no knowledge of the cor­

13 rectness of the entry, if there is any question on the law

14 as to that, your Honor, 1 can cite it in a few moments.

15 THE COURT •. Objection overruled.

16 MR. APPEL. We except.

17 MR. FORD. Answer the question.

18 (Last question read by the reporter. )

19 JAR. APPEL· 1 suppose he means of his own personal knowledg ,

20

21

22

your Honor?

THE COu~T· 1 think the record shows the kind of knowledge

upon which he is answering. Answer the question.

23 1 A 1 don't know how many checks were received by the bank.

241
upon ttat day from the First National Bank.

25 / MR • roRD How many one thousand dollar checks:?

MR • Appel • Your Honor will see--let's be fair about it,
26

you permit n:.e. That is on Octot-er 6tq as 1
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1 your Honor, or s:ometime in October. Your Honor will see

2 that the charge inthis case is alleged to have occurred

3 on the 28th day of November, and the matter of the thousan

4 dollar check your Honor wi 11 remember as to the date, 1

5 think it was October 6th or someV'lhere along there. Now,

6 the inquiry, as 1 understand the District Attorney, relates

7 to the thousand dollar check, your Honor. Now, suppose

8 this witness testified that they received so many or·a

9 number of one thousand dollar checks 0 Now, certainly, in

10 so far as your Honor knows, and inso far as we know, and

11 in so far as th e jury knows, we have not been connected,

12 cand it has not been charged to us--with that issue or we had

13 anything to do With it any more than a one thousand dollar

14, check. Now, this inquiry relates to a number of thousand

15 1 dollar checks. Your Honor can see in admitting that

16 evidence you adrni t evidence which is for eign to the is sue

17 entirely, that it goes to other transactions with the

18 bank, the checks payable at the Commercial Nat ional BaJ?k,

19 deposi ted in the First National Bank, and there may be any

20 number of those checks drawn against the bank or the

21 account of the Witness and deposited in the First National

22

23

24

25

26

Bank by any number of persons. Now, here they are asking h'

concerning matters to which--and we have not been connected

or wi th which we have not been charged, and it is introduc­

in~ other rna tters, other tr ansae tions in. th is ques tion ,

which is not pertinent to the issue, so the inquiry as to
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1 what is our conre ction with that thousand dollar check,

2 what did Franklin do with it, how did it come to be paid

3 from Mr. Darrow f S accoun t'? That is all the question here

4 they are asking him concerning a number of one thousand

5 dollar checks. 1 submit, your Honor, they are undertaking

6 to introduce evidence which is foreign to the issue here.

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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We shall

No, no; th e witness has not said that, your

I will stand. on therecord on that. And we

elimination showing that the fourth check is the ch~k

introduce the evidencfe.

reaching this by process of elimination•.

duc e the other th ree ch ecks vlhich will be a process of

MaR. APPEL: That is the same question we ha? before, if

you Vlill permit me to suggest, that that ld1d. of evidence

is never alIO\"1ed, you cannot say: that because I

account with you in a bank that a checkdrawn in favor 0

Honor. I submit he said. they were returned. I was very

cautious to hear that, ~d he didn't say they were 're­

turned to th e defendant.

to show there were only two checks received that day

$1000 frOm the First National Bank, rod only four re- .

ceived by the bank during that entire day.

LfR FORD: That is it exactly.

THE COURT: Upon no other theory c an it be proper to

],{R AP ffiL :

THE COURT: What is your th oory) yr Ford?

:M:R FORD: The testimony so f~r sho·ws, by the testimony of

this witness, that a $1000 check drawn against the aCCOtUlt

of C. S. Dar ~ow, Trustee, on October 6th, 1911, was re­

turned to the defendant.

19

20

21 /

22
I

23

24

25 I

261

I
I

~: (
15 \

16 1\ referred to in this account, and must necessarily be

17 1.. \\3h.eck now. in the possession of defendant.

18 yo' THE COU"Rr: That is what Ivvant to know, whether you are

1

2

3

4'

5

6

7

8

9,

10

11

12
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1 a person, I am charged with drawing it, pc:IYable by that

2 bank, if they c an produce e a~h check of that denomination

3 containing that amount and 1 eave the oth er one out and

4 I because they can account for all those checks and that be­

5 causeA, B, C, D, E and F did not give any of those checks
•

6 to the person whom I am charged with giving my check,

7 therefore. I must. of neCE/ssi t:i have don e that which I am

8 charged wi th. That character !hf evidence is the most dan­

9 gerous evidence that has been ever introduced. You can

10

11

12 I

13

prove, in a small town, murder has been committed, you

can bring all the inhabitants of the town to show that

they did not commit the murder. and therefore, the man

on t rial must, of n scessi ty, have conrrnitted it, b sceuse

14 those were the only people in the tovm. I sUbmit that
I

15 I

I
that kind of widenc e is never admissible. your Honor.

16 I THE COURI': Obj ection overruled.

17 MR FORD: Read the question.

18 TP.E PEPO'RTEH: Mr Smith has the qu estion.

19 1m FORD: I will rep eat it.

20, Q How many $1000 checks were received from th e First

21

22

23

24

National Bank on that day?

MR DARROW: The same obj ection stands to this.

lfR FON>: Yes sir.

THE COURT: Obj action r:n erruled.

25 cr' A Two.

26 t/Q Hmv many with the cl ElOring slips which you hold in
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1:;' your hands?

2 :MRD ARROW: The s eme obj ection.

3 MRAPPFL: And objection on the further ground the wit-

4' ness has not testified that he had any knowledge upon the

•
5 fact, on th e contrary, he has testified he has no personal

6 knowl edge of the fact.

7

8

9

:MR FORD: Acc ording to th e records 0 f th e bank.

mRE COURT: He has not wen testified that th ese slips were

received in the 0 rdinary course of business•.

10/ MR FORD: Were those slips received in the ordinary

11 course of business?

could not know the correctness of them, not knowing the
.

facts.

he did not wen know whether they'Vlere received in the bank.

THE COURT : Them'e is no obj ection to this question.

},fR APPEL: We object to it on the ground no foundation has

He didn't receive them. This witness says

He says he didn't rec eive them.

THE COURr: Obj ECtion 01 errnled.

UR APPEL: We ex:c ept.

been laid, incompet ent, irrel evant and innnaterial, assume s

a fact not inaridence; it is not the best evidence, it is

calling for hearsay, calling for guess-work; it i s calli~

for· knowl eag e gained by the witness through an inspec tion

of the records whichv.ere not made by him and of whic h he
no

hali knowledge and does not know the correctness of them;
~

lffiDARROW:

UR APPEL:12 I

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26/
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1 A The question l8ain, p~ease.

2 (Question read.)

3i A The records show that they were.

4 :MR .APPEL: Move to strike tha t out.

5 :M"R FORD: It may be stricken out. I beli ElITe I c an reach
•

6 this in a very simple manner.

7 THE COURT: Strike it out.

How many cll ooks ,fo r $1000 were drawn on yOur1m FORD:

bank on th e 6th <:my of october. 19l1?
" -

10 MR .APPEL: We obj ect to that on the ground it is incompe-

11 tent, irrelev/ant and immaterilq.; not th e best evidenc a;

12 upon the further ground, no foundation has been laid;

13 calling for an opinion and conclusion of the witness,

14 not for positive testimony; the witness has no knowledge

Obj ~tion overruled.

We except.

~,

;~"'...,-,
I~
r~

th e Commer-,·-r~
, ~

cial National :Bank for $1000 each on that dey. ';'A~);<j\;
I\iI';
I

I

THE COURr:

and it is otherwise immaterial for any purpose.

1ffi APPEL:

22

21

'\ ,18 J/'"' A Th e records show four checks were paid by

.. \\'19
/

20

23

24
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MR. APPEL' We move to strike it out. It is a substitution

2 of oral evidence for written evidence, it is not the best

3 evidence. We ask that it be stricken out as not res-

4 ponsive to the question.

5 THE COURT. The motion to strike is denied .
•6 MR • APPEL' We take an exception.

7 MR. FORD. Is the question answered?

8 (Answer read. )

9 -MR. FORD. Q 1 now hand you tP1ee documents and ask you

10 to examine them. I have already exhibited them to the

11 y" defendant.

12 I (Witness examines document.)

13 Q State if those are three of the four checks that were

14. received by your bank fl3-ID the F~_:'~_~-l!~,~,~g:rl.a;L~

15 I./'Wi thdraw the question.~atewhether or not those are -......"
.'-----~

16; three of the checks pr esen ted to your bank on the 6 th day ..,.,,~.

17.' of October, 1911, for $1,000 each?

18 MR • APPEL. We object to that upon the ground no founda­

19 tion has been laid; the Witness has not been shown to

20 possess any knOWledge concerning the fact of presentation

26" MR. FORD.. The doduments themselves may contain all

data to prove it.

personally receive the checks, did not open the envelope

in Which they are supposed to have come; and upon the

furtter ground that it is calling for hearsay; incon,petent,

irrelevant and irr~aterial for any purpose.

21

22

23

24

25

to the bank; that he has testified that he did not
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1 MR • APPEL' Call ing for an opinion and conclus ion of the

2 wi tness.

3 THE COURT Objection overruled.

4 MR· APFEL. We except.

5

6

7 t

A The quee tion again, please, Mr. Petermichel ••

t Quee tion read. )

A Yes, eir.
I

8 :{tMR • FORD. Q And the fourth check to which you refe-r is

9 ~\ the one indioated in exhibit Number --what i e that 1 ae t

10' ;, exhibi t, Mr. 8mi th--let me have that last exhibi t--the

11 'I four th item of $1,000 check presented to your bank on

12 nthat date was the $1,000 item ontre account of Clarence Dar­
',(Ii
'" I13,/ \/row, presented in Exhibit No. 36, concerning which you have

14,\/ aiready testified.

15 MR APPEL. We object to that because he is putting the

16 words in the mouth of the witness; it is leading and sug-

17 gestive; incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial.

18 MR. FORD. 1 withdraw the question.

19 THE COURT. Quee tion wi thdrawn.

20, MR. FORD· Q Of those checks which you hold in your hand,

21. how many of them came froni the First National Bank?

22 MR. APPEL. We object to that as no foundation laid; in-

23

24

25

26

conJpetent, irre] evant and immaterial for any purpose;

calling for hearsay, opinion and oonclusion of the witness,

the witness having already testified he has no personal

knowledge of the facts to which hie attention has been
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1 attracted by the question, otherwise inm:aterial for any

2, purpose.

3 'THE COURT' Objection overruled.

4 MR. APPEL' We except.

5)/ A The records show but one came from there.

6,.'" lIR. FORD.· Q All the other two checks came from other

7 sources?

8 MR • APFEL· We move to str ike out the answer of the ,wi tneBS

9 on the ground it is not respons ive to the question.

Yes.

Notion to strike is denied.

We take an exception.

The answer, 1 believe, is in?

THE COURT'

MR • APPEL •11

12\'. MR. FORD'

13 THE COURT.

10

14 MR. FORD. Q A: d how many checks came from the Firs t

15

16

National That day, al together, for $1,0001

MR. APPEl.. We object to that as already answered.

17 1 MR. FORD. Let me r efr arue theques tion • Q How many

18 ,./ checks for $1,000 cane from the Firs t National Bank that

MR • FORD, Q Mr. ESB ic k, how many years have you been
25' .

day?

MR. APPEL' We object to that upon the same grounds stated

4th of next August.

It will be 14 onA

Two.

engaged in the banking business?

in our last objection.

THE COURT' Objection overruled.

MB. APPEL. We except.

/A

26 .
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20

21
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24



I 3737It/Q Are you thorou~hly familiar with the system ·of book- ­

2 / keeping employed in your bank? ~~. ""lIlIiw..

•
3 MR. APPEL We object to that as immaterial, incompetent,

4 irrelevant for any purpose whatsoever; the witness has

5

6

7

8

not been put upon the stand to testify and give any expert
I

·oPinion or knowledge or skill with reference to that mat- I
ter and we admit his knowledge and skill in every particul~1
and qualification, but it is immaterial in this case.

9 MR. FORD. Counsel having admitted his qualifications and

check for $1,000 drawn on the account of C. S. Darrow,

Trus tee, come?

MR. APPEL. We object to that upon the ground it is in-

competent, irrelevant and immaterial; that it is not a

23

24

25

26

10 skill--

II UR. APPEL' Yes, yes, your Honor.

12 MR. FORD. --1 cannot see any objection to letting me prove

13 his qualification as an expert, that is exadtly what 1 want

14 to do.

15 MR • APPEL. 1 thought you would take that stipulation.

16 THE COURT· Objection overruled.

17 MR • APPEL' We except.

18 MR. FORD. Q Answer the question. A Yes, sir. __...;;;:;,__-+

19, . Q From an examination of the books and documents

20 cerning which you have testified this afternoon, and basing

21 .. your opinion upon that as an expert, from w.hat source

22 the check r eferred , to j-n Exhibi t No. 36, .tow it, the
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1 matter of expert knowledge to prove from what place a

2 check came; a fact like that was never allowed as expert

3 testimony, never in the world and never will be so long

4 as there are courts and judges and everyone who knows

5 what expet:rt testimony is; it is not a matter of expert
•6 testimony and it is otherwise incompetent, irrelevant and

7 immater ial for any purpos e. 1 am not an exper t •

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

115 '

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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3739
1

2

3

4'

M'R APPJm.: We take an exception.

1/ The question again. Yr Petermichel.

/ (Last question r· ead.)

A May I answer?

And on what date?

A lio sir, those are not the on EB I had in my

I don't know that we shall Gd'fer this, your Honor,.

THE COURT: The question was asked, Mr Appel. Do you wish

to have it read?

MR APPEL: we are entitled to hear it.

THE COURT: If you didn't hear it you are entitled to have.
it read. Read it.

(Last two questions and answers read.)

hands a moment ego.

but I want to have them marked for identification.

Q

Q BY Mr Ford:

Was that the document I showed you a moment 280, and con-

MR APPEL: It is a sort of a mutuel conversation.

TEE COURT: The court heard the question, and if you did

not, you are entitled to hear it •.

MR APPEL: Are we enti tl ed to lmow what is done here?

c eming which you t estifi ed?.

MR APPEL: The same objectioil.

THE COURT: Overruled.

MR APPEL: Exc ept ion.

5 A From the First National ~ank.

6

7

8

9

22

23

24

25
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I

10 / A October 6h, 1911. _____.___'---'-..----

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21
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1 MR APPEL:

3740 I
That is all right, if the,y are not the ones.

2 1 MR FORD: The document s whic h you hoI d in your hands now,

3 f· are they the ones I showed you a moment ago? A yes sir.

4 \' MR FORD: We ask that they be marked exhibit 37, for i'den-

5; tification, your Honor.

6. THE COURT: Fasten th an all together, and mark them.

7 MR FOBD: . I now hand you a bunch of similar documents.

8 A May I make a request, your Honor?

9 TEE COURT: yes.
.

10 A Those small slips are important to the bank in con-

11 nection wi th the envelope in which they are. May I ask

12 that the envelope in which they are enclosed, be a part

13 of the exhibit?

14 MRFORD: yes, we will offer it.

15 1 MR APPEL: We are ~. rfec tly willing, your Honor ,--

16 A I do not~~nt to ldse my records, in other words, your

17 Honor.

18 MR APPEL: We are ~ rfectly willing, your Honor, tha t they

19 m~ be sUbsti tuted and the court here may have copies of

20 them, and whatever questions t here are concerning them, may

21 be asked concerning the copies, 8S if they were the origi­

22 nals, if they want to. That, I hope, under the statute,

the court has a right to do that; we ,can substi t.ute copies

and they can te asked concerning them just the same as if

they were the originals, because all that is material in

there is th? figures.

25

23

24

26
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1 ~/ lJR FORD: : I now hand you an envelope containing some

2~'/ slips which I have exhibited to counsel for defendant

3 "and ask you if thos e ',r,ere rec aived by your bank on th e

4; 6th day .of October, 1911; if the records shoYl' they were 1'e-

5 c eived?
•6 ]{R APP:&L:· We obj €nt to that on the ground it is incom-

7 petent, i rrel arant and immaterial, not calling for the

8 best evidence, and it is hearsay, collateral to anv" issue

9 in this case; no foundation laid, and calling for an opin-

10 ion and conclusion of the witness as an expert upon mat­

11 tel'S upon which expert testimony is not a:lmissible, not

12 being a matter of expert testimony or of skill.. .
13 THE COURT: Objection overruled.

14 :a.m APP:EL: We ecc ept.

15 A The question ~ain, please •.
16 THR COURT: Rea d the qu astion.

17 (Question read.)

18 A Yes sir.

19 {/ JlR !IlGlRD: I will ask that they be marked Exhibit 38, for

20

21

22

23

24

25 I

261

I

identification, your Honor.

THE COURT: Mark them 38 for identification.

lID FORD: We now or fer the checks identified by the "vi t-

ne ss as exhibit 39.

MR APJBL: we obj act to that on th e grolmd they are imma-

terial for any purposes in this case, hearsay.

MR FORD: Being thre 0 checks for the -sum- 0 f $1000,

I
I

i
I
I

.....l
I

'-1



1 sented,8cC ordine; to the testimony J to the Commercial
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2 National Bank on the 6th day of October, 1911.

3 MR APP:BL: We obj ect to th Em on the gro1ll1d they are imma­

4' terial for any purpose \v.hatsoever, no foun:l ation laid,

5 collateral, hearsay•
•6 THE COURr: Obj ~tion overrllled.

7 :\f R APP:BI.,: We axe ept. We ask that the rul e be followed

8 now; it has not teen complied with, but I demand whenever

9 a dOCll1U€l1t is offered in e.ridence, tha t they be read to the

10 jury. They have a right to bow th1 se are not our

11 checks, it is a fact we are entitled to, if it is offered

12 I against us.

13 THE COURr: t assume that as soon as they hmre been marked

14

15 I

161

couns e1 intends to read them.

MR APPEL: They should be read, and if they are~Ginst us

the jury ought to know that fact •

.17 MR ]URI): They me:v be read to the jury and vve will s tipu-

18 late they are not the checks of the defendant.

19 THE COURT: Marie the documents as quickly as po ssible and

20 let counsel have them to read them. You migh t read them

21 first and mark them afterwards.

22

23

24

25

26
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It'UR • FORD. Exhibit 39. "Los Angeles, Cal., October 5, -~,i

2 1911. Commercial National Bank. Pay to the Order of I
3 All Night & Day Bank, Los Angeles, Cal., $1,000 One

4 Thousand 00/100 Dollars", signed It J. A. Hagins. It Rubber

The second documen t of the exhibi t, "Los Angeles,

nctober 6, 1911", and perforated, "Paid."

5

6

7

8

9

10 ,/

October 6, 1911." Stamp, "Merchants National Bank,

11 Cal., O~tober 5, 1911. Pay to the order of SIC.Dunlap,

12 $1,000 One Thousand 00/100 Dollars. To Commercial National

13 Bank, Loe Angeles, Cal. Atlas Milling Company, by

14 V. Kratz." Endorsed, "'Pay to the order of First National

15 Bank, Los Angeles, Cal. S. C. Dunlap." Endorsed, "Los

16 Angeles Clearing House, First National Bank, october 6,

17 1911. "

Third document:18 i

19 Cal, 10-6, 1911.

"Pay to the order--" "Los Angeles,

'Pay to the order of F. E. Watts, $1,000

One Thousand Dollars. To the Cornmerc ia1 National Bank,"",...."'"

Endorsed, "Pay to the_--

CroBs-Examine.

Signed, "Cunningham Curtiss & WelchLoa Angeles, Cal."

order of E. D. Burbank,'.F .E. Watts. 'E.D.Burbank. Pay'

to the Order of Commercial National Bank, 16-17 of Los

Angeles, Cal., 16-17 °etober 1911, Traders Bank, 16-67

of Los Angeles, Cal., 16-67 A. Thos. F. Cook. Cashier."

Co. By Henry S. Jones, 8eey."

Perforated, "Paid, 10-6-11."

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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a w~tnesB called on behalf of the People, having been first

·duly sworn, testified as follows:

THE COURT. State your full name, and be seated.

A George G. Young.

DIRECT EXAMINATION.

CROSS-EXAMINATION.

BY MR. APPEL. Q Mr. Essick, whatever you testified 'to here

you testified simply from an inspection of the recorda, aa

1 understood you to say, and not from any personal know­

legge of the facts? A Yes, sir.

A 31.

G. YOU N a,GEORGE

YR. FORD. Q How old are you, ;,1r. Young?

Q Where do you reside? A Los Angeles.

Q What street and number, please1 A 639 Solano avenue.

Q And your occupation? ATelIer, First National Bank.

Q That is a bank doing business at the corner of Second

and Spring streets, in the city of Loa

A Yea, sir 0

•
MR. APPEL. That is all.

MR. FORD. Tha t ia all.

MR. APPEL· Just a minute--aomething has been suggested

to me. We move to strike out all of this testimony in

th is cas e on the ground that it don t t concern the case.

THE COURT· The motion to strike out is denied.

MR. APPEL. We take an exception.

" ~ I [ 1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18 '

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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Do you know Bert H. Franklin? A Yes, sir.

Were you a teller in that bank on the 6th day of October,'

Does your Honor wish the record read?

The defendant will make it himself.

Yes, read the record.

the Corr~ercia1 National Bank, and deposited it to hia own

THE CO tR T

check by Clarence S. Darrow, or Co S. Darrow, Trustee, on

defendant.

tion, and 1 think you should ac t upon it in some way.

MR. FREDERICKS- We maintain, your Honor, that pleasant

as it might be to expedite matters, that a stipulation is"

not receivable in a criminal case as evidence against the

account and drew therefrom a certain sum of money on that

MR • ROGERS.

day, we are. willing to stipulate it.

MR' FORD' " Read the ques tion.

(Question read. )

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

3 " 1911? A Yea," sir.

4 THE COURT. Just a moment, 1 didn't catch that first

5 question •
•6 THE REPORTER·

7

8

9

10

11

121

131
14

15

16

17
18 A What day do you mean?

19 ~ ,.. Q, on the 6th day of October.

THE COURT. Wait a minute--counsel haa offered a atipula-
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1

2

3

4

5

6

7

MR. DARROW. Put him on the stand where?

MR. FORD. Here, put the stenographer on the stand.

THE COURT. Go ahead and offer your evidence if you want

to.

8 \-MR. FURD. Q 1 will ask you to look at People's Exhibit

9 L / NO • 7, which has been filed in this case, and ask ~ou if

10 r ever saw too t document before.

13

14

MR • APPEL· We object to that on the ground it is incompet-

ent, irrelevant and imrraterial for any purpose whatsoever;

that it is collateral to any issue herein, does not tend

to prove that Mr. Darrow gave Mr. Franklin any sum of money

I

15 I amounting to $4 ,000 on the 28th day of November, 1911 or

25 is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial and hearsay,

26 that it doesn't call for any acts or declarations or any

State the cir-

purpose whatsoever.

THE COURT. Objection overruled.

MR • APPEL· We take an exception.

MR. FORD. Answer the question.

directed him to pay that sum of money 10 Lockwood for any

21; A Yes, sir, 1 have seen it.

22 Q When did you first see it and where?

23 cums tances •

24 MR. APPEL. Wai t a moment--vve object upon the ground it

16

17

18

19

20
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in this case, did Mr. Franklin give you anything else

are collateral and that the declaration or acts of the witne f

or Franklin do not tend in any way, shape or manner, to

part binding upon the defendant, calling for matters which

prove that the defendant on the 28th day of November, 1911,

delivered to Franklin $4,000 with which--wharged in the

THE COURT- Objection overruled.

MR • APPEL· We take an exception.

1

2

3

4

5

6 ·indic tment •

7

8
9;" MR. FORD. Answer the question. A 1 took this deposit

10 on October 6th from Mr. Franklin.

11 1 , Q At the time you received that deposit slip which you

hold in your hand and which has been marked exhibit 712

13
14'/ besides the deposit slip?

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 1m APPEL: Wait a minute. We object to it on the s~e

2 grolUld stated, that it doesntt tend to prove the offense,

3 or any element of the offense charged in the indictment;

4 it doesntt tend to prove any pribery on the part of the de-

5 f endant or of any giving -- any money being given by th e

6 defendant to Franklin on the 28th day of November, 1911,

7 to give to Lockwood, and it is collateral to any issue.

8 THE COURT: OVerruled.

9 MR APPEL: We take an mcc eption.

II, wh en he gave me this.

10 MR ]j'QRD:

12 I·· Q

Answer th e question.

What kind of a check?

A He gave me a check

131m APPEL: Wei t a moment. We obj ect upon the grOWld the

THE COURT: Overruled.

UR FORD: The re~ord is already introduced in evidence

wi th the requirements of the statut e or th e code in that

respect has been observed by the District Attorney, and

it is collateral to any issue in this case, and does not

tend to prove the offense charged in th e indictment.

(Question read by the rapo

You mean --

Read the question.

At er.)

check is the best evi denc e, that it c aIls for secondary

evidence, and are obj ect to the ecamination of the wi tness

concerning a written instrument not before the court, or

before the witl'l ess or before cOlUlsel; that no compliance

UR FOtID:

MR APPEL: Exception.

14

115

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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Drawn on the COJtlm3 rcial National Bank?

I would like to Bet the

ansv.rer.

l~R APPEL: Wai t a moment.

THE COUID': Read the answer.

(Last answer read by the reporter.)

1m APPEL: That is what we want. to know; the question

calJe d __ofcoursere undertook to tel~ him what it \'vas,

the defendant, C. S.D arrov/. Trust ee.

MR APPEL: We take an e xc epti on.

A WhY, the c heckwas yr Darrov7' s.

lEE. FORD: Of C. S. Darrow. Trustee? A C. S. Darrow.

THE COURr: Not foundation.

MR APPEL: We make the same o'td ection, your Honor; no

foundation laid. There is a'w~ to lay the fOl1ndation.

your Honor, the oral testimony of the contents --.

laid here.

VR"APPEL: This record, your Honor

THE COURI': ·Overnlled.

MR FORD: If the court please, that is exactly the point

made to the preceding obj ection to 'Wilic h your Honor ruled.

preceding witness, wh3 re the recor,d shows that tQ.e ch~

had been returMd to thedefendm t.
~ ... ,' .:. :----;--....---'--- - --.....:~;,>= ...:;...:;:.:;;.."'-:;;;:;:.,,~--:::-..:: ....~~,.~~~, ...,~.

1m FORD: OUr testimony will show that the chookroferred

to is the same check refefred to by the testimony of the

1m FORD: Dese ribe the check.

THE COUR1': I don,t think there has been any foundation
•

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 respons e. The wi tneS8' s answer was C. S. D arrow; I

2 thought he meant to 8~ C. S.r.arroW', Trustee.

3 TEE COURIJ.': That is the record.

4 1m FORD: I am not trying to attract. the witness' atten-

5 tion -- the checkves drav1Il on the Commercial National Bank.

6 lfR APPEL: They didn't accept that stipulation.

7 THE COURP: COlms el asked for a reading 0 f th erecord and

8 got it.

9 !{R APP:EL: They wouldn't take the word of the defendant or

10 hi s c Olms el as being true.

14/./ drawn on, by whom it was signed; describe it generally.

that the

That is obj ECted to upon the

You have got a reading of the record.

Wait a moment.

NoW, they have no rieh t tor ely on it.

Ih:tal testimony concerning a wti'tten document, and uporu

THE COURi':

question calls for secondary 6lidenc e, that it is not per-

the further ground it is not the best evidence,

"

ground that no fotmdation is laid for th e introduction of 1

r

Imissible under the code, that no fOlmdation hesbeen laid

MR APPEL:

:!vIR APPEL:

20

19

18

i
I
I
I,

13' "MR FORD: ;rust state the kind of a check, what bank it wa'~·".::t
~j

I

17

11

12

16

15

21 for secondary evidence concerning the contents of a

22 wri tt en inst rument and it is hearsay and collat eral to

23 any issue in this case••

I know the checkw8s drawn by C. s.26 A

24 THE COURr: Obj ection 01 erruled. Alswar the question.

25 lorR APP:EL: We take an exception.
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1 ~/ drawn on som e ci ty bank, mcording to this marking.

2 ~. MR FORD:

4· 'MR APPEL:

--11
. I,..--+

I
~ t

Sir?A

Obj ~tion c.wrruled.

The same objection.

And for what sum?

Ii
Do yourecall of yonr OVID personal recollection --

Wha t amonnt?

$lOOOl.

Q

TIm COU Rl.':

YR FORD:

•
5 ~ A

6

7

3

8 TH E COURT: Jus t a moment) yr FOrd. I think we wi11 take

9 a recess at this time. (Jury admonished. Recess for 10

10 minu.tes. )

11 (Mter recess.)

12 THE COURT: How much tLl!le do' yO'll expect to consume

I
Now, a t the time that I

'-->-- !
JUst amut three minutes.

time?

to be a check signed by B. H.JBranklin for $500 on October

on this branch of the case?

yr Franklin cparesented this check of Darro\v's and the

20

18

13

!
I

16 d eposi t slip that has been marked exhibit 7, I will at- i

17 tract yourattention to people's exhibit No.9, purporting~!
I

19 .. 5th, 1911) and ask you if you saw that document at that ~
I
i

14.· mFORD:

15

:ME APPEL: Obj ected to upon the ground it is incompetent,

irrelevant and immaterial for any purpose whatsoerer, upon

the furth er ground that it calls for hearsay evidenc e,

that it calls for matters collateral to the insue herein,

that the evi dene e does not tend in any way, shape or mann r

to prove that the defendant upon the 28th day of Novemb

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 1911, d e1bered over to Franklin the sum of $4000 ,or

2 directed him to bribe the juror LockWood.

3 THE COURr: Obj ection overruled.

4 llR APPEL: We take an e xc ept ion.

5 A ; What was the questioro?

6 (Last question read by the reporter.)

7/ /A yes sir, I saw it.

8 /MR FORD: At t hat time did you

9. upon that document, e<:hibit 9?

10 JKRAPP:EL: Wait 8 moment. The

11 grounds last stated in our last obj ~tion to the previous

12 question.

19 THE COURr: Overru1 ad. A It was in pap ere

20 1m FORD: Currency? A yes sir.

17 (Q In what kind of money?

18 MR APP:EL: The same obj ~tion.,

13 THE COUml: Overruled.

141m APPEL: We ex:cept.

15 A yes, I cashed the check, gave him 500.

$500? A yes sir.16 i /]IR FORD:

21 Q .And what denomination?

22 :MR APPEL: The same obj ection.

23 THE COURr: Overruled.

24 l.rR APPEL: Exc epti on.

25A WhY . t i 1ar e bills I never pay' a $500) check, J. was n g • .-...".....

26 in small bills un1 ess they ask for it.
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CROSS-EXAMINATION.

MR. APPEL. Q Now) let me see that document. Wi th8ut

inspecting or your attention having been called to the

check in question purporting to be the check of Mr. Franklin,

do you have an independent recollection of the transac-

tion that you testified to? A YeB) sir.

Q You remember row that on the day in ques tion you paid .

him $500? A Yes) sir.

Q And Without seeing the check you could have testified

to i~ A 1 knew 1 gave it to him) yes.

Q 1 a ay without seeing this check? A Yes.'

Q This check has not refreshed your memory? A No.

Q Did you pay me $500 on that day? A 1 don't know whether

1 did or not.

Q Do you remember any other person that you pa~ any money

to on that day? A No •

Q On the day before do you remember that you paid anyone

$500? A No.

Q Or the day after? A No) sir.

1 THE COURT· . Read the question.

2 MR • DARROW • 1 as k to have that answer s tr icken out.

3 MR. FORD •. Well, it may be stricken out.

4 THE COUR T. Str icken out.

5 ~" MR. FORD. You paid him in currency? A Yes) sir.

6 VR. FORD. Cross-examine.

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

2s
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1 Q Now, on the day in question do you remember having

2 received any other check from any other individual except

3 Franklin to deposit to the account of such an individual?

4 A Frcnklin's account?

5 Q No, anyone? A No, 1 don't remember anything about it.

6 ~ You remember having received any on the day befere from

7 any particular individual to deposit to his account?

8 A No, air.

No.A

~~!.

the signature to the r
..~.~'

S • Darrow, Trus tee? ~
~

l,

1 know it was Darrow's

No, 1 wouldn'It': swear to it.

1 do not remember;

A

A

Or the day after? A No, air.

Now, do you reme!!ber whether or not

1 don't remember whether it was Trustee on it or not?

Do you remember where the endorsement was on the back

Do you remember whether it was a check written upon

No, 1 wouldn't ellear to it j it was there.

check of $1,000 was C. S. Darrow or C.

Q

Q Do you remember What color of ink it was?

9

10

20

21i/Q

11 r
121' A

J
. ~Q Si~?lq

Ilj I QChec k •
'You don't remember whether it was C. S. Darrow,
\

//-
l' or not?

18; of it, Whether across one end of it or lengthwise?

1

19

22 your bank blanks or upon any other? A 1twas not on our

blanks •23

24L/ Q Sir? A 1t was not on the Firs t National Bank blanks;

25

26

no, sir.

Q It was not? A 1 don't think it was, no.



1 Q Well, do you know anything about it? A

3755 I
1 wouldn't ewe,

2 to it one way or the other.

3 Q Was it a draft? A No, personal check.

4 Q Well, drawn upon any foreign bank? A Drawn upon a

5 bank here in the city, one of the city banks.

6 "Q Do you re rrember what bank it was? A No, 1 know it

7 was miscellaneous--

8 Q Do you remember the number of the chec k 7 A No.

9 Q Do you know whether there was a number on it or not'?

10 A No, sir.

11 Q Do you remember the color of it? A It was a green

12 check •

24 tion here? A I don,t try to remember them.

1 don't remember •

Q It was a green check? A 1 think so •

Q Did you ever get any 0 ther checks from F.r an kl in?

A Yes, sir.

Q Were they green also? A 1 don't know.

Q Did you ever get any other checks from Franklin with

What were the amounts of the other checks that you

received from Mr. Franklin Wi th the name of Darrow on them?

Q So, the only thing you know is about the matter in ques-

Q You are testifying from the record, assisted by the

record? A Yes.
25

26

20

21

22

23

13

14

15

16

17

18 the name C. s. Darrow on them? A yes, sir.

19 Q What color wer e they? A 1 don't know.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7
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Q And you are basing your testimony upon your own per­

sonal recollection of the transaction 'tut aided, of course,

rraterially by the record, that is right 7 A Yes.

MR. APPEL- Now, we move to strike out the testimony of the

mtness on the ground that it is not the best evidence, it
•
is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial for any purpose.

MR • FORD. Jus t a moment--

8 THE corn T. Motion to s tr ike is denied.
9
,/,MR. AFrEL • We take an exc ept ion. Q Now, you say that the

10 check for $1,000 which was deposited by Mr. Franklin to his
11

12
1

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

credit on what day was it, 1 forget? A october 6th.;---

Q Yes, on October 6th., You say that it was a green check,

was it? A 1 said 1 thought it was green.

Q What makes you think it was green? A Well, because 1

though t 1 knew wha tit looke d 1 ike.

Q What? A 1 tr.ought 1 remembered what it looked like.

Q You thought, do you know? A No.

Q You have no way of thinking? A 1 have a slight recol­

lection.

Q on what do you base your conclusion or your memory of

its being green? A 1 remember the c ircums tance of br ing­

ing the check in, just seemed to me it was a green check.

Q Now, wflsn It ita cBeck on the Corrrrercial National Bank?

24 A WasnIt it?

26 Q You don I t know? A No •

25 Q Yea. A 1 don It know.
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2
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Q Well, don't your record show it was a check on the

Commercial National Bank? A 1 think not. I

Q Then it was not a check on the Commercial Nat ional Bank?

4 A 1 don 1 t know whether it was or not.

5 Q Now, isn l t it a fact that the check that he presented

6 'to you was a yellow check? A 1 wouldn't say whether yellow I

7 or green.

8 Q Then why did you say green alittle while ago? A 1 said

9 1 trought it was.

10 Q You merely guessed at it? A Yes.

11 Q When you guess at a thing do you swear to it as a fact?

12 A No, 1 didn It swear to it.

13 Q No, you are not under oath. A Yes, sir.

14 Q Now, isn't it a fact that the Commercial National Bank'

15 I checks are yellow--l attract your attention to one, for

16 instance, in order to try to refresh your memory. Attract-

17 ing the witness's attention to Exhibit No •.39, being two

18 yellow checks, dated October 5th, 1911--now, 1 will take

19 my seat then.

20 IIR • FORD· 1 just wanted to look at the checks.

21 MR. APPEL. 1 didn It ask permiss ion to come near the

22 witness.

23 THE COURT. 1 aee no impropriety to your going up to the

24

25

26

\'1i tness stand in order to hand him a paper. All right,

now, you may go up to the witness stan and proceed With

the examination of the witness. If counsel on the other



side desires that permission--

to. stay there. 1 am in a state of seemingly fear.

tha t check of the Commerc ial National Bank.

MR • APPEL. Your Honor, 1 am examining this witness.

1

2

3

4

5

6

MR. APPEL.

!ffi • FORD.
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1 will explain the reason why 1 didn't want

1 ask permission of counsel to let me look at

THE COURT.

is showing

10'"
...

MR. FORD.

10 thing that"It;
lq'

t
13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

For my examination.

You have no r igh t to see itat th is time'. He

an exhibit and indicating what it is-

Suppose counsel should be asking about some­

is absolutely--



so I may understand it?

court.

He has expressed a dasi re to ~alUine th e wi t ness wi thout

THE COURI.': .. He stated in the l' ecord what it is. It is

on cross-examination.

one of the exhibits inaridence, and you shall have it as

soon as counsel has finished examining th e wi tness.

whenever a witness is being examined about it.

question, I will withdraw it.

l!R FORD: :rust a moment. Is there a questionrefore the

THE COURi': I don, t think t here is. I Em! trying to get a

clear field for Mr APpel to proceed, and I am going to

get it. proceed, Mr Appel.

1.fR APPEL: NOW, I will attract your attention to two cll

which form part of the ~ibithere, Which is Peopl a's

THE COURT: Wi thou t being in terrupt ed.

MR FORD: Have I not a right to hava my attention attract-

MRAPPEL: :rus t by way of refreshing his memo ry •

being interrupted.

MR APPEL: Let me make my question. If it isn~t a fair

1m FORD: I have the same right to look at all exhibits

1m .AP PEL: I j ~s t want to show your Hono r --

THE COURr: Counsel has a right to show it to the witness

ed to a mat-tar com erning which he is examining the witness'l
l

1 "\ THE COUTU': I shall take it for granted he is not.

MR APPEL: Your Honor c an see it.

26
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1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

ex:hibit No.39, one being a white chook on the COmmercial

National Bank, Los Angel es, Cal.; see? And the other· two

being yelloVl checks on the Commercial National Bank of

Los Angeles. Now, after looking at them and seeing what

purports to be the blank checks of that bank, would that

aid you in now making a guess as to what sort of 8 colored

ch ook the one was that Franklin handed to you?

1m FORD: If the court please, we object to the question

upon the ground that it is absolutely innnaterial mether

it would aid him or not. The fact that there a re some yel-

blanks on that bank.

10Vl checks of th e Comme rcial National Bank doesnt t in eny-

I a av; any green ones or no t.

I s ee so many, although I woul dn t t swearWhen? AQ

I h8lle, yea.

Q DOntt you knoW' the color of the chooks of tm t bank?

A No, they here all different colors, I think.

Q What makes you think they are different colors?

A We have all different colors.

Q Did you wer s ee a green ch ECk on that bank? A I think

THE COURt': Objection overruled. Let the witness answer.

A No, that wOll1dnt t aid me any.

UR APPEL: I t would not? A No.

wise prove or t end to prove that the)'eare not also green

Q No, no, no; what makes you think there are differen

colors of ahecks 0 f that bank, the COmmercial National

111
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1 Bank? A T.here is two· different colors right there.

2 Q And your green one makes three? A yes.

3 Q All ri.c;ht. Now, these are two colored ell ecks of the
v

4 Commercial National :Bank, ,ain, t it? A yes sir,

5 there is two of them there.

One being Cunningham, Cut-tis & Welch Company,

7 blank check used for the purpo se of drawing moneys from

8 the COmm.ercial National Bank, and the other being the r egu-

9 lar Commercial National Bank checks, which are yello"v.

10 },,{R FORD: Is counsel testifying?

11 MR .APPEL: What tim e of the day vvas it w11 En Franklin c eme

12 there? A Well, about noon, I think.

13 Q
~

About noon; how do you remember that? A Well, my

14 ,,'assistant was out at lunch at that time.

15

16

17

18

19

Q He is out at lunch on other days, ain,t he? A yes,

he goes th esame time.

Q How do you r emanber the date? A This date?

Q yes. A From tha t &hibi t •
-

Q Exactly. What kind 0 f a day was that; do yojt

20 remember in particuimr -- any other circumstance of that

day, so as not to bother you with questions?21

22 Q

A NOe

Absolutely none. You don,t know What you did or who

23 talked to you or '\v'nat business you transacted except that

24 you remember Franklinca:me there with a green check that

25 day and you don't remember anything more mout that

26 do you? A No.
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1 Q And you do remember that your assistant went out to

2 eat? A I know he always does.

3 Q And he always does eat? A SUre.

REDIRECT ECAMINATION

4 }.{R APPEL: No more. A No more?

5

6

MR FORD: Just a moment --

THE COUI{[': I think a juror wants to ask a question.

.rUBOR GOLDING: There is a misunderstanding somewh ere;

he testifi eel that $500 checkv.es on some other bank. ex:cept

the First National :Bank. or is that a misunderstanding?,

No t that was our bank. th e Fi mt National ~ank.
~ , .A

'-'

Q What kind of money did you give him? A I don, t know.

Q Who wasthe next man? A I don' t know.

Q you don' t remember vna the looked like? A No.

Q Do you remember vhat kind of money you gave peopl e om

that dqy? A NO, I do this time, though.

Q Why do you know that? A Because I gave

.rURQR GOLDING: $500 with your bank? A yes.

.rURQR GOLDING: I misunderstood th e t4stimony.

MR FORD: And the $1000 was on another bank? A yes.

the $1000 was on another bank.

MR APPEL: I waiLd like to ask a question.

THE COURT: All right.
CROSS-EXN~INATION resumed

:MR APPEL: Who was th e man just before Franklin appeared

at your vlindow that you dealt With? A I don,t know.
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1 lin.

2 Q Because you g ave it to Franklin? A yes.

3 Q Isn,t this thefact:that you have been over these

4 facts with someon e. and t hat they have aided you in remember

5 ing this thing, and you have thought over it so muc h that

6 °it become impressed upon your memory, and now, from What

7 they hwe told you and from what little you have gathered

8 from the records, you have fixed what your testimony· should

9 be here?

10 MR FORD: We obj ec t to t hat on th e g rouPil th e qu astion is

11 a long, compound question, some of it might be answered

12 in theat"finnative and some in the negative, on the ground

13 it is a compound and complex: question. If counsel desires

14 let him ask him why he remembers it, and we h rue no obj ec­

15 tion.
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know.

THE COURT. 1 think the witness undeDstands the question

Q What did he tell you, he had to go down and pay hie men

to know why 1 remember about Franklin.

THE COURT. Do you want it read? Read thq,qeustion.

(Last question read.)

A He wan taandean answer it. Is the question clear?

at the office? A No, 1 don't know what he said.

Q He didn't tell you that? ,A No.

Q What did he tell you? A 1 don't know as he told me

anything.

•
MR. APPEL. In your mind, 1 mean, 1 do not mean dis-

respectfully. A 1 don't know; 1 remember distinctly of

the transaction, Franklin coming in and depositing the

/~heck and draw ing his own check for $500 and my handing it

to him •.

Q He was in a great hurry? A 1 do not think so; 1 don't

14p 1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18 Q Not a word? A 1 don't know.

19· Q Did he tell you what kind of money he wanted? A

20 don't remember whe ther he did or not.

21 Q pow do you know what kind of money you gave b im?

22 A Because 1 1l0uldn't give him srr.all bi1ls?

You always give large bills when they ask you for $5007

23

24

Q You would not?

Q

A No.

25 A 1 do, so tha t he wont have to stand around the windovi ____'"""'-L

26 for an hour counting it.
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them.

Q You didn't have a $500 bill? A 1 don't.keep them in the

case •
•

Q Did you give him fifty 1 A I wouldn't say, one hundred

or fifty.

-A Hundreds and

Q Did you give him a $500 bill? A No, 1 did not.

Q How do you know you did not? A Because 1 didn't have

Q And don't you keep any at any time? A Very seldom, 1

don't keep them at all.

Q What do you mean by "large bills"?

fifties.

Q Did you give him one hundreds? A I wouldn't say one
~~;;<~

hundr ed or fifty.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14 Q Did you give him twenties? A No.

15 I QDidn' t give him twenties? A· No, 1 am sure 1 didn't
16 I

give him twenties.

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

Q Did you open a big package and open up $5001 A No, sir.

Q Was it a $500 package? A No, sir.



bank.

in that drawer and I handed than to him.

didn't he? A No, he goes about 11, someril'heres around

11.

Remained at the bank until late that afternoon?

About half past 4 or 5.

That was Saturday? A I don't know.

Did he come back on that day? A He come back after

What day of theweek \vas it? A I don't know.

Your assistant went away at 12 o'clock to dinner,

How did you give it to him? A I have my big bills

Q

A

Q

Q

a while.

Q Sir? A He came back.

Q. What time did he come back? A I don,t t know.

Q. Did you go to dinner? A yes.

Q And came back? A yes.

Q What time did you leave? A I leave when I get

through.

Q No, that day. A Somewhere before, about half past

12, between 12 and half past.

Q And you c eme back that day? A I Came back at half

past one.

Q

Q

Q

Q They were loose there? A yes.

Q Well, was it after 12 o'clock? A I don't know.

Q Who was present? A I don' t know who was there •
•

Q Were the other employ as there? A Everybody in the

25

26
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REDIRECT EXAMIUATIOlT

:MR FORD: Mr Young, you say you distinctly remember this

transaction, although you fix the date of it by the slip

there. Vbat was there about thetransactionthatC8used

you to distinctly remember it?

Q Your bank closed at 12? A I don't know. . It was not

Saturday tm t he got the money.

Q It was not Saturday, October 6th, 1911?

l,fRFORD: We obj ECt to that, that is a matter of almanac

calculation, cOl-msel can refer to it.
/

Q Did you give Franklin money at any other time? A yes.

Q What denominations? A I don,t know.

Q How much? A All different amounts.

Q About what is the largest amount, f~ve or six hundred

or a thousand dollars? A leashed Darrovv's check for him

on on e of th e other banks for $500.

Q VI1at kind of money did you give him then? A I don,t

remember; itms large bills.

Q When'V8s that? A I don't know 'IJIh:a t dat e.

Q What month? A I wouldn't say what month it y,as.

Q What year, 1911? A 1911 sometime.

Q In january? A No, the latter part of the year.

Q That was in~cember, wasn't it? A I would not state

what month it was.

:MR APPEL: I guess th at is all.
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1 MR APPEL: We obj ec t to that on t.h e groun d it is incompe-

2 tent, irrelev/ant and imInaterial; not redirect, infomp:l tent

3 for any purpose.

4 TP~ COURT: Objection overruled.

5 MR APPEL: We e xc ept..,~.. ";:/\ ')

6 /V;:--Vi!l.y, I remember the circmnstanc e of Franklin co~ing \

in and giving me this check. I vvould not have cashed

the ch eck unless I had seen th e deposit there first,

and knew he had the money there; that is the reason I

That is more or Ie ss 1 eading.

I SUbmit, if your Honor please, they have no

.l.-

.perhaps it is.

rency which you paid him?

right to ask him that question; they asked him a questi

at the check to decide',' in your mind ,mher itwas good

in direct evidence, as to what he did, andv~ cross-6xun

Q

for $500?

MR APFEL:

UR FORD:

MR ROGERS:

23

22

20

24

10 L":.3~~_,good look at the ch eck before I gave him t~~m~~1
11 Q Did you consult with anyone in the bankb3fore paying I

~23 the' check for $500? A No sir. )

Q And on account of hisdrIDrlng $500, you first looked (I

) I

\1
\)

(
State to the jury your reasons. A I sa:Y:.a--1_10Q1<=.&Q._~.t \

\

J;..h e.<!~£§i~:nOJ:,~,_,~,,~,~fl:l,~_~~,_Jh~~_~~g.J~b.ec.~l1se., ,~~.:~_~,~-I

e.c;l..!Q...~,aw. the...,~Olley; wb;~.-!.J>,.?:t~ hi-m ~h~_~.$_~292t_.I_Yr...;t!j:_~9- )

.to 1m~w,.~h e.c~C?k~,!!J~,~8.£9~.! (

Q And are you positive as to the denominations of cur- \
\\
,
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remember how many years, quite a ntlll1ber of years, though.
. I

Q . Did yousee Mr Franklin on the 6th day of October, ------4
1911? A I did.

26. - Q yes. A There was no one in t.he house.

1!R FORD: That is all.

MR APFEL : That is all.

"
.....

DIRECT :EXAUnrATION
/

What is your name? A Mrs Dora F. Rain.

At your r esidenc e? A yes.

Who else'was present wh en you first s aVI him on that

Q

Q

day, Fr~d.ay) October 6th? A In the house, you mean?

Q At what pl~ce, Mrs Bain? A At the residence, the

home residenc e.

MRS DORA F. BArN. 8 witness called on be­

half of th e ~eopie) being firf[t duly 6WOTI1, t estifi ed? as
. /

follows: j

Q Where do you reside? A 345 West Sixty-eighth street.

Q In the ci ty of Los .Angel es) C,alifornia? A yes.

Q You a 1'e married? . A I am.

Q What is your husband's name? A Robert Bain.

Q RobertF. Bain? A yes.

Q Do yon know Bert Franklin? A I do.

Q How long re ve you known him.? A I do not really

THE COURI': I think you are right. That has been gone

into on both sides. Obj ECtion sustain ed.

MR FOW:
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1 at home.

2 Q Did you have a. conversation wi th him. at that time?

3 A I did.

4 Q Just tell the jury the circumstances of your holding

5

6

a conversation with him at that time end what was said and
•

done?

7 MR .APPEL: Wai t a moment. We obj rot to the e.ridence upon

,.....
I~

:~

Loc kwo 00.) th at being th e c he rg e embrac ed in th e indic t-

the ground that it is incompetent) irrelw'wt and imma­

terial for any purpose vihatsoever; it is collateral to

any is sne in thi s c as e; it is he arsay) ~nd. for the reason

that it does not tend in any way) shape or manner to
Darrow

prove that Clarence"ever did at any time deliver toMr

Franklin the sum of $4000 for. the purpose of bribing

Juror Lockv/ood or directed the said Franklin to bribe Juror

25

26

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16 ment in this case.

17 THE COURr: Obj ec tion CN erruled.
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And being acts and declarations of theMR • APPEL.
37711~

said Franklin and of the witness long prior to November 28t

1

2

3 1911, the date charged in the indictment when the alleged

4 offense is alleged to have occurred, being too remote and

5 irrelevant for any purpose.

6 THE COURT. Objection overruled.

7 MR • APPEL. We take an exception.

8 MR .FORD. Read the quee tion •

9 MR • APPEL. Just a minute--Iet me get the stipulation, so

10 as not to interrupt the wi tness, your Honor. May these

11
i

12 '

13 !

14

15
I

16 I

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

objections, your Honor, unless it appears necessary to add

to it in the future, may this objection go to all of the

questions and all of the answers that the Witness may give?

That is, it may be a running objection to all of that so as

not to interrupt the Witness heRafter?

THE COURT. It will be understood that the same objecm.on,

thesame ruling and the same exception io interposed to each
[

andevery question propounded to this witness, unless

counsel desire to add so~e additional objection.

MR. APPEL. Yes, sir. Very well.

MR • FORD. Read thequestion.

(Ques tion read. )

A Do 1 understand, you want all of the conversation?

MR. FORD. All of the conversation, from the time you

first saw him.

A When :Jr. Franklin first came to the door 1 was not



1 will do the' best 1 can. He said he wanted to see him on

and 1 stepped to the window and 1 saw an automobile and 1

--,I
can-

He said that he must see him

It has been quite a while ago, but

'+

. 377~
go to the deor and he gave an alarm, rang I
and then he went around to the back door }--

In a moment or two M.r. Franklin came around

in condition to

the door bell,

to the Window and 1 opened the window and 1 says, "1

in the automobile said, "Why, he has gone around to the

tions where Mr. Bain was.

immediately, or he mus t see him that night, and 1 told him

just as near as 1 could, and he thought at first that he

--called out, "1 cannot come to the door," and the gentleman

not come to the door," and he says, "Why, where is BOb?"

And 1 tried to tell him as near as 1 remember, the direc-

business and he mentioned the fact that--

conversa tion en tirely •

would go there. Now, 1 don't know that 1 can give the

MR. APPEl.. tet her state what was said, your Honor.

THE COURT· Yes, state what was sai d.

MR • FORD. Q He mentioned the fact, that is something he

said. A He said he was a detective and 1 said 1 understood

so from a mutual friend of ours, Mrs. Brainard, and he

says, "Mrs. Bain, 1 have been here to see you three or

four times, several times, and 1 never found you in," and

1 says, "No,. 1 have been very busy, " and 1 days, "Bob is

working," and 1 says, "1 am working in a contest for a

blind lady friend of mine and 1 have been away a great

1

2

3

4

5

6 •
back .-"
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and then 1 said, "By the way, Mr. Fr ankl in, you might hel p

me in this oontest," and he sajs, "Yes, what do you want?"

And 1 says, "Well, 1 am aiming to get a 0 er tain number

of points by Saturday night, tomorrow night, and three

months, six months or a year would help me very mator­

~ally," and he says, "What paper is it?" And 1 told him

the Examiner, and he says, "Why, yes, 1 will help you out,

1 will give you a year." 1 thanked him and 1 says, "Will

you do it right away?" And he said, "Yes." 1 says, "Wait

a mon,ont and 1 will go and get my receipt book," and he

said, "Let me come in," and 1 says, "No, Mr. Franklin,l am

not in posi tion to recei ve anybody in the house at this

time ,n and he says, "Why, 1 wont look at you, let me come

in," he says, "lwamt to talk to you anyway." So 1 allowed.

him to come in and got the reoeipt book and he says, "Let

me make it out for you," and made out the receipt himself

for $9.00 for a year's subsor iption to the Examiner, and

1 s aye, "Now, that affair is settled," and he says, "Yes, n

he says, "All but the money, you want some money, don't

you?" And 1 says, "Yes, that is very essential,"and 1

smiled, and he says, he asked me if 1 had change for a

one hundred dollar bill, or fifty, 1 wouldn't say posi­

tively whicr. one it was. 1 laughed and 1 said, "No, 1 have
23

not seen a bill of that denomination sinoe 1 was cashier,"
24 .

and we smiled about it, and he says, "Can you ohange a tenr
25

1 says, "No, this is rather late in the week", and 1 says,
26
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' A{ ,

·1 "1 have less than a dollar in the house." And he says,

2 "Well, maybe 1 can find it for you." He took out a pocket

3 book and opened it and there were quite a number of--a

4 great deal of currency in it--l didn't see any of the

5 denominations, and he finally got out $9.00 for me and he

6 gave it to me ani 1 thanked him and 1 hoped then he would I
I

7 go, because 1 was very busy. And he leaned back in his

8 chair and he says, "You have a very nice home here, Mrs.

9 Bain .' 1 says. • Yas. we think so.' He says. • Ar e you hapl'yt '

10 1 says, "We are very happy, 1 have not been so happy since

11 1 married, since 1 am in our little home." /Hewanted to

12 know if we owned it. 1 s aye, "We ar e buy ing it" and he

13 says, "What do you owe on it?", or, "\\'hat are you paying

14 for it?ll 1 looked at him as much as to say, .1 didn't

all right, Mrs. Bain, 1 am not asking out of cuniosity

think it was any of his business, and he says, "Now, that is I

_II
I ·

i

but 1 am asking as a friend."
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1 He says, "BOb and I are old friends", and he says, "I know

2 your circumstances", and he says, "I may be in a position

3 to help you out." He says, "I think I \rill be," and he

4 says, "you know Bob and I have worked and I know Bob is

5 an honest man and I have always been honest't, he says, "I

6 am in a position now vmere I can help him out", and I

7 says, "I wish you could, Mr Franklin, it would be very
,

8 much appreciated, I am sure." I says J "Bob is working

9 today at carpenter work; he has got pretty good prospects

10 for the winter", and I says, "if he could fin d something

11 easy to do", I says, Itit would be very much appreciated lt
•

12 He spoke of ·Bob' s age, he says J ItBob is getting pretty

13 old to do carpenter work", and he says, "it seems too bad

14 that he should have to work on all these years", he

15 said, "If he. had not been imposed upon", he says, "pro-

16 b ab]y he would no t be in the po si ti on he is now." And

17 he says, "He won't be able to work at carpenter work much

18 long er, will he?" Well, I says, !tMr Franklin, wh En Bob

19 becomes that age that he cannot work any more", I says,

He says, IflJrs

I says, ItI am not afraid of work,

And I says, ItWhen Bob is unable to

ItI will work for him. 1t

work for me, then I will work for him."

n (!Ner have been. It

Bain, you are not always going to be able to v.ork; you

are getting that ege yourself when you are not going to be

able to ,~rk hard. n He says, ItI want to help you."

hesitated a while. He says, ItDon't you know what I want

20
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And he

He says,

I says, "No,

He hesitated quit e a

I says, "What jury?"

I says, ttyes sir." He says,

I says, "I have not the sligh1est idea,

Well, he says, "Mrs Bain, I want Bob

j urylt, he says, "he may not qualifylt, but he says, Itif

says, "Has he ever expressed an opinion?"

says, "For one thing, he is hard of he aring."

for ecamination."

toserve on that jury.tt

ItThe UcNamara jury."

"Can't you guess?"

"No," he says, Ittt is not that."

- I'

Well, I says, "I don't.tt He---ii
111

says, "Well, Why not?" Well, I says, "Because Bob has' r
got good work now and~, I says, "it will take him away ,-/ il
from home, and It, I says, "furthermore It, I days, "Bob 1\;

never would qualify on that." He says, "Why not?" I ~~
It.

•

poenaed on the jury?"

ItAre you sure of that?" I says, "I am." He says, "Has .

he been sunnnoned?" I says, "ThereVles a paper handed to i.
him, and handed to a neighbor and sh e gave it to me and ,---,.

told me to be very sure and hand that to ],fr Bain wi thout

fail lt , and I said"!tvJas a notice that he should appear

while, and he says, "Oh, by the way, has Bob been sub-

Ur Franklin, unless you want Bob to do detective work."

3716

1
Bob to do~.:Mr Bain -- Mrs Bain"? I says, "Why, no." He I
scratched his head and looked at ,me ~ain ann he says,

1
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you know, Mr Franklin, that :Bob is a man of v ery fe,., words",

and 1.le s eys, "Well," he says, ItI want him to serve on that

jury and lt he says, "I will malee it worth his while, and lt-;--... ,

25 / he went right on saying that ifltBob will serve on that

26
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i;
I;
I,'

\-

I
I

I says,

Well, he says,

tactics that they do to ' •

a question of c apital £g~ II
1
1
!i

i~
I;·

He says, "I t is

of that crime as you are", and he says, "that is the reason

end of the trial, providing he·votes forlCquittal or

has to use the same tactics that they are using." He

says, "You don't want to see the se boys rail!l1eaded to the

penit entiary?".

•

that I dare approach Bob on that subj ect?"

"No, Mr Franklin, I don,t think you dare."

labor", he says, "these boys, Mrs Bain, are as innoc ent

we have got to do this thing", he says, "the prosecution

I

-- 'IIstays through, qualif'i as, he stays through to the end of

the trial", he says, "I ....vill gi ve him $3500 more at the' I
II
\1

~J

~j

t
t

hangs the jury", and he says, "Now, Mrs Bain, do you think

"He must serve on that jurylt, he says, "These boys are :

.' being railroaded to the penitentiary and"he says, "the---\

prosecution are buying witnesses and jurors, and", he says,

. "we have got to use the same

1 / will ~ree to try to serve on tha t jury", he says, "I

2,/will give him $500 tonight", and he says, "then if' he

3

4
i-

5
/
.~

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13 " keep even. It

14

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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~

18, \t And he says, "Now, do you think that 1 dare approach
\

2 Bob on that subject?" 1 didn't think so. "Well," he s aye, I
3 "will you speak to him," he says, "do you think that you

4( ~oould per.uade hm to go into thi.?" 'W ell,' 1 .ay., --1
5 "Mr Franklin, if 'anybody can persuade Bob to do i tl can,. I

6 'but," 1 says, "1 don't know that 1 can." "Well," he says,

7 "will you try?" He says, "You will get $500 tonight,"

8t, he says, "1 will give you $500 tonight; 1 will be here

9 tonight." In the mean time he had spoken of coming again to

10 see Bob at 7 o'clock, and 1 says, "Well, 1 can speak to

1 said, "1 don't1 s ai d , " No • "

He spoke along advisedly of the

advantage it would be to us and that we could payoff our

a good thing it is."

Attorney and tell this?"

him," and he says J "Will you try to persuade him?"

suppose for a moment· that Bob wi)) go to the District

11

21
(

22"

12; / "Yes."

13

14

I
1 ~aid, II

I'He says, "Now, remember," he says, "Think what J

~ 1\
It

15f,...aitt1e home, and held out the inducenentJjand 1 was foolish II
'\. ( I r

16 enough to fall, and so then shortly after that, after 1 i i
--i~

17 agreed to speak to Bob, he left, and he said, he would be It
18t/"b~Ck at 7 o'clock. 1 told him 1 would not be here because I~

19 ·1 had. to go to lodge. He says, "You will speak to Pob and I}
I~

20 /-he wi 11 be ready to race ive me?" He says, "You don' t ~

I ;
I

23; /believe Bob would do that, in fact 1 know he wont." That i

24 about as near as 1 can remember the conversation.

25, Q Do you remember anything else that was said at that

conversation, Mrs. Bain? A Might have been quite con-
26
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1 siderab1e more said that 1 would not just remember at

2 this time.

3 Q You stated a moment ago that he had aS,ked you about the

4 payments on your house? A 1 told him about the payments.

Q What did you tell him about that? A 1 told him that thel

place coat $1800 and that we were paying $15 a month with i
I

the privilege of paying, -including principal and interest,--

with the privilege of paying more whenever we saw fit,

any time we wanted to pay more on the principal we had that

pr iviJ ege.

Q And did you at that time tell him anything about handing

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12 the deed of that house to your husband? A I did, yes.
'T

13 1 said at that time--

14 VR. APPEL· We obj eo t to that as imIIlater ia1. Wait a moment.

15 MR. FORD. par t of the conversation.

16 MR. APPEL. We object to thet as inconipetent, irrelevant and

it doesn't appear that ia said in the conversation, that

MR • FORD. Wai t until the court ru.les •

MR . APPEl,· 1t has no bear ing on the matter at all, their

own transactions in reference to that matter. Your Honor,

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

irnma ter ia1.

A I toldhim--

MR. APPEL. Wait a moment.

is material.

TFE COURT. Objection overruled.

MR. APPEL. We except.



thje case.

UR. APPEL. Just a moment--she testified--

I
thelMR. APPEL. Just a mornent--we move to strike that out 'on

could hand that deed to Bob and say, "Bot, this is our

TEE COURT· Uotion to strike is denied.

A 1 don,t remember the words--

MR. FORD. 1 was sin~ly attracting the witness's attention-­

THE COURT· IS that preliminary to some other question?

MR. FORD' Preliminary.

ground it doesn't tend in any manner to prove any issue in

MR· FORD- Now you can answer the question_

A 1 said that when--we were speaking of our anniversary.

1 told him that the happiest day of my life would be when 1

A I don't always hear well.
Bain,

THE COURT. All right, Mrs./We will speak loud so you can.

MR • FORD. During that conversation--will you read that

answer as far as it has gone and see if ther e is anything.

she desires to add to it.

(Last answer read by the reper ter.)

A And then he said, "Mrs. Bain, 1 think 1 can very soon

place you in the position that you can do that. It

Q You stated a moment ago that Mr. Franklin had said that\\
\

the prosecution were buying jurors and witnesses and that)

the def ens e: had to us e the sam e tac tics, is th at corr ec t i'

Aves.

home."
•

26

I
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8
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3781 l
THE COUR T· Oh, well, all r igh t •

MR. FORD. Q At that time was anything said by Mr. Franklinl

concerning other jurors in the case? A He said-- ~
MR. APPEL. Wait a moment--

THE COURT. Mr. Appel, the ?fitness has just stated that she

is hard of hearing. 1 call your attention to that fact.

MR. APPEL. . 1 know that. 1 know the witness for a great

rrany years. We obj ec t 1-lpon the ground th at it is incom­

petent, irrelevant and immaterial--well, 1 will put it

in this way, we wi 11 obj ect to the ques tion upon all of

the'grounds stated in the first objection made to this

line of testimony, made by us here while the witness was

present, and we further object upon the ground that it

calls for acts and declarations by Mr. Franklin concerning

past transactions and do not tend to prove any issue in

16 this case.

17 THE COURT. Averruled.

18 MR. APPEL. A repetition of past transactions.

19 THE COUR T. Overruled.

20 MR. APPEL· We except.

21 THE COURT. You may answer the question, Mrs. Bain.

22 A 1 don't remember what the ques tion was.

23 (Las t quest ion read by the r epor ter • )

24 A Not at that time.

25 MR. FORD. Q At,any time during the conversation was

26 anything said about other jurors?
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Q You said you we re not in condi tion to see Mr. Franklin,

or at least you had told him that, so there will be no

misunderstanding, just tell the jury what you were doi~g

MR • APPEL. We understand that, your Honor, it is unnecesscqty

THE COURT. ijead that question again.

(Last question and answer read by the reporter.)

MR. APPEL. The same objection.

TrIE COUR T. overruled.

MR • APPEL. We take an exception.

A Not until the following meeting, until SUnday.

A Taking a ba th •

1 wan ted to ge tat th is conver sation only •MIl. • FORD.

at the time he called.

•

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

she has answered it.

25

26

13 THE COURT. It seems unnecessary to go into a conclusion . '

14 the counsel has allowed to go in wi thout objection. However, I
I
I
I15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24
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1

2

3

MR FORD: Now, ha'd. you that day talked to :M:r Franklin be­

fore that meeting or talked with any person concerning Mr

Franklin? A only my neighbor who handed me the card~{r

4 Franklin had been th ere.

MR FORD: I withdraw that.

THE COURT: OVerruled.

\ I
had you \ I

) I
. I

./ I
I

I had.A

Strike out the answer for the pu~)oses of

Question vdthdravm; answer stricken out.

Wait a moment

Before :Mr Franklin had called that d~

received a ca~d from anybody?

THE COUR!.':

irrelevant and innnaterial for any purpose whatsoever;

MR APPEL: We except.

MR FOBD: After you received that card, what t if 8I:\Ything,l

did you d9,Mrs Bain?

MR APPFL: Wait a moment. We obj ect upon th e ground

it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial whatever sh

it is hearsay; it is not binding upon the defendant.

the obj ection.

YR AFIEL: Obj ooted to upon the ground it is incompetent,

obj action.

ness and anyone else; incompetent, irrelw1ant and imma­

terial, and hearsay.

MR FORD:

MRAPPEL:

THE COURT:

MR APPEL: Wai t a moment.

THE COURT: Strike out the answer for the purpose of the

},fR APPEL: we obj act to any declaration between th e wi t-

25

26

5

6

7

8

9
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1 did herself is not binding upon thedefendant; it is hear­

2 say.

3 THE: COURT: Overru.l ed.

4

5

6

7

llR APPEL: We exc ept •

THE COURr: Answer th e qu estion.

A I immediately took the card to the neighbor

to Mr Franklin as per request.
,

i
I

-~"I
and phoned 1

./1

8 MR APPEL: We ask the last statement be stricken out.

9 THE COURT: tf as per request tf; that part of it. will be

10 stricken out.

11 MR:roW: Without stating just what you s aid over the phon ~~
..,/

12 with whom did you talk over the phone?

13 MRAPPEL: Wait a moment. we object to that upon the same

14

15

16

17

ground stated in our previous obj ootions, and each and

all cf th e groum s stated therein, calling for hearsay.

THE COURI.': Overruled.

MR .APPEL: We eKC ept.

18 A I spoke to Mrs Franklin, she answered- the phone.

19' M'R FORD: Did you s e.e Mr Franklin yourself again that day,

THE COURI.': Th e wi tne ss inqui res whether or not she should

on Friday, October 6th, after you had had this first

conversation: with him? A I did not.

20

21

22

23

24

Q

A

When next did you see U r Franklin t you, yourself?

Sunday evening.

25

26

always wait for the objection. I say, not necessarily,

but try to obsemre whether couns el for the
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1 ous of objecting, and if so, give him a chance to, is the

2 customary way to do here.

3 }lR FORD: What time did you see yr Franklin on Sunday?

4 A To the best ofmy recollection itms Sunday evening •. -

5 Q Now, between th e time you sawyr Franklin th e fi rs t
J •

6 time, and the time you saw him th esecond time on Sunday,

7 did you speak to your husband about the conversation you

8 had had wi th M'r Franklin?

9 1£RRAPPEL: Wait a moment. W:3 obj ect upon the ground it

is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial for any purpose.

whatseoever, and upon the further ground that the wit-

ness is incompetent, not qualified to speak core erning

the matter, being a matter involving the commission of an

alleged of fense, and she cannot be used as a witness to

testify as to any mat-tel' involving the commission of an

offense by her husband, not competent to testify in that

respect, and cannot be used as a witness under the provi­

sions of section 1323, whatever it is. Notwithstanding that

Ur Bain is not on trial here, under the decisions here, we

take the ground that the wife cannot testify or be ec­

mnined comerning any matter or thing that may involve

the commission of an offense by her husband; she cannot

be used as a VIi tness against him or c an any fact be estab­

lished concerning!rr Bain by the testimony of the wife for

the purpose of asking as a fact, as against the defendan

The decisions are that even where the --

25

26

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20
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1 ],{R FORD: May I ask the witness just one question refore

2 you argue the matter?

3 MR APPEL: I am obj ecting to the question, 'end I can cite

4 authorities.

5 THE COURT: Yes, you have a right to be heard at this time.
• that

6 MR APPEL: Ifwe are wrong in the ruling,.:: will dispose

"7 of th e question, if we are wrong in our contention of the

8 law, that will dispose of the question.

9 1lR FORD: Just to clear up a question of l' act, before you

10 make your obj ootion.

11 MR APPEL: It is a question of law; it is not a question of

12 fact.

13 7vfR FORD: We agree with COUD.1Sel that a wife cannot testify,

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

against her husband any time without the consent of both.

I now ask leave to ask this witness mether her husband

has consented to her appearing here as a Witness, both he

and she have been SUbpooBBed, and th e fact is that they

are both here in court to testify. Further.more, both

she and her husband, we will show, if necessary, have

testified before as witnesses in a criminal proceeding.

:MR APPEL: We obj ec t to that; that is not material to a

le.gal question.

23 TEE COURT: That is not material to th e application be-

24 fore the court to ask this witness a question.

25 MR FORD: If your Honor will hear me just a moment, I

26 will show you that it is. They are both m:empt under cir
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in a criminal prosecution.

1

2

stanc es. They have both t estifi ad against }!r Franklin)

3 1m APPEL: That is a foreign matter to the matter under

4 investigation here, and the fact that anyone has don e

5 wrong or has done right outside of this court room does
•

6 not aid than in thedetermination of a question of I mi.

7 This is the manner in which the gentleman argues his propo-

8 sitions of law, because Tom, Dick and Harr,y, in someother

9 court has pel~itted the wife to testif,y against the hus-

10 band therein, they want to bind this decision as a preceden:

11 because so and so, not having the ability to determine the

12 law, not being able or capable to determine a question

13 of law, has decided wrongfully ~a nst the first princi-

14 pIes of law, they cit.e that as a precident here in this

15 court. That is not the way

16 THE CaUR[': Mr Appel, if you want to be heard on this mat­

17 ter, I will hear you right now.

18 1!R APPEL: If your Honor will permit me to g et th e 8uth-

19

20

21

ori ties --

THE COURT: I will ask you if you are maldng your ergumen?

under subdivision 1 of l88l?

22 MR APP]L: 1322 of the penal COde.

23 MR FORD: It has been amended. I h are the slip right here,

24 your Honor.

25 YR APPEL: We will wait until th e gentleman finishes, yo

26 Honor.
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1 THE COURr: I just wanted to read the section, :M'r Appel.

2 :M'R APPEL: Section 1322 of the penal COde! reads, "Neither
-

3 husband or wi fe is a competent witness for or against the

4 other in a criminal action or proceeding to which one or

5 both are parties, except with the consent of both or in

6 cases of criminal violence of one upon the other, or in

7 cases of bigamy or adultery --" (Reading.)

8 Now, section 1881 of th e Code of Civil proeedure, is

9 more applicable in a matter of this kind. A husband

-
if that is necessary, and t hat will dispose of the Whole

ll~Bain, do you con sent to yourmat-ter without argument.

husband testifying in this matter as to the communications

made between you and him?

THE COUHT: Wait a moment. yr Appel has the floor on a

action or proceeding by one against the other, nor to a

criminal action or proceeding for a crime committed by

one against the other; that is, these exceptions do not

apply in this case.

llR roW: We offer to put Mr Bain on the 13 tand and show

that he consented to his wife testifying in this matter,

cannot beex:amined for orfg·ainst his wife without her con­

sent nor a wife fllr or against her husband wi thout his

consent, nor against ei ther during the marriage or after­

wards, be, without the consent of the other, examined as

to any communication made by one to the other during

their marriage; but this Slcception does not apply to a civil

25

26

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24
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1 proposition of law. We must proceed in an orderly way

2 here.

3 MR APPBL: NoW, 'he attempts here I will not state the

4 authorities upon the proposition. I suppose it will be

5 granted that in all collateral matters the same kind of
•6 evidence and the same rules of law must apply in proving

7 collateral matters, or else it cannot go to the jUry oJt

8 the court would not be per.mitted to go to the jury; so

9 held in people against Bird, and other cases in this state.

10 Now, in order to make this matter material, in order to

11 prove that a crime VIas committed by Franklin and by Baini ,

12 it is sought to use the wife here and prove that crime.

13 Now,'w contend, your Honor, that she cannot be examined

14 agains t the husband to prove that crime. They cannot use

15 the wife to show that Eain connnitted an offense for the

16 purpose of laying it at the door of the defendant. ,They

17 cannot do that. yr Bain, being a party to a criminal pro­

18 s ecntion, and no foundation being laid for the examina-

19 tion of her in that resp~t. Now, that is our obj ection,

20

21

22

23

an<Dlwe qre contending that, andw8 simply stated a propo­

sition of levi, she cannot be examined with regard to com­

munications made to the hnsband or by the husband to her I.

unl ess a proper fm.md ation is first laid.

24 THE COURr: Obj ection sustained.

26 on that matter, first? In the first place, it has absol

We are not all 0 \,j\jd to be heard, your Hono r.YR FORD:25
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1 ly 110 applic ation to th e case at bar.

2 THE COURr: yon have intimated an offer to prove at

3 this time- to lay a foundation.

4 MR WID): If the cou rt please, I offered to do that mere-

soever.

other ·proposition.

your Honor.

Call 1fr Bain.

We obj ect to that; it isn't a question

A I do.

MR FORD:

MR APPEL: Wait a moment. We have a right to ask some-

ME FORD: Answer the question.

YR APPEL: Ww exc ept •

T~~ COURT: Objection overruled.

petent, i rrel want and immaterial for any purpose what-

the la~, to save the argument, I will now answer it with

this on e question. Do you consent that your husband may

v
whether she consents; the t doesn, t lay th e fOlmdation,

the husband, or a case against the wife. However, in order

to save the argument, without stating th e a rgmnent -that is

law states that that is applicable to only cases c;gainst

ly to save argument, b eClluse suc h is not the law. The

testify, lIrs B-ain, to any cOJ'nmunctcation made 'by you to him

or by him to you? I will call Mr Bain in a minute on the

THE COURI.': What is the ground of your objection?

MRAPPEL: We o'tdect upon thegromld that it is incom-

![R APPEL:

•
5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14
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16
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26 MR APPEL: Your Honor, since obtaining the authorities,

thing on that foun dation.

THE COURI.': You may.

MR APPEL: You are willing to testify cone ernine the ac­

ceptance of moneys by your husband from Mr Franklin,

through your instrumentality, to have your husband tes­

tify to what you told him and testify to your ~tions in

helping him, knovving) and for the :reason that the District

Attorney hm promised you immunity, and promised your hus­

band immunity, and for the purpose of gettiJ:'\g him immu­

nity?

llR FORD: Just a moment. we obj ec t upon th e g roun d it

is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial, what the :reason

is that actuated the vii tness, as long as she consents,

and the reasons are absolutely immaterial· at this time.

This is simply a question of securing cons ent of her to

allow her husband to testify. At the proper time I will

offer to call her husband to testify to his consent and

the reasons that ootuated her at this time, is absolut ely

immaterial: The question is one of secnring consent. It

is nota.ren necessary that they take the stand. I can

call yr Bain in here and ask his consent without swearing

him. I can secure hiswritten consent, as long as I show

he consents; it isn,t a question concerning vlhich the

person giving his consent can be cross-examined concerni l'\5

his motive.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9
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11
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promise; it must not be affected by outside considerations

and th e wife has given something to the husband, when she

untary. We havea right to go into that question, what is

the inducement here. Was it a fear that her husband v.ould

3

ci921
1

and _ II
held,

has parted With something of value to the husband, when

ei ther party are interested in that t rans8ction, the pre­

sumption is that that t rans8ction was tainted by undue

influence -- by influence which the husband is presumed

to have Oller the wife, by that confidential relation

which ex:ists between them, and whe:l the wife goes upon

be prosecuted if he did not testify? Is that a free con­

sent such as the law contemplates? ihen a transaction,

even in civil matters occur between husband and wife,

and when a wi fe goes upon th e witness stand, your Honor,

and testifies to matters of this kind, and is ~dertaking

to testify in reference to it, the law presumes that she

is under undue influenc e. Her consent is not free and vol-

the transaction. It is not a consent, the law says that

cons ent 11lJlst be absolutely unaffected by this consideration

and consent must be voluntary consent. It must be free

from all coersion. It must be free from all taint of

concerning, especially the admission and confession ofhav­

ing committed a crime, 1s inadmissible against a defend­

ant. It is inadmissible egainst anyone connected with·

promises and consent obtained under undue influence,

consent obt~1ned through offers of immunity has been

•

25

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

26



1

2

3

4

5
•

3793

stand and says, "I consent to this", we have a right to go

and shovr what kind of consent it is, whether it is the

con sent mentioned in th e statute, an d the statute says

that consent is not consent when it is the creature, when

it is the sequence of coersion, promise, undue influence,

6 and that is implied when the wife is upon thestand.

7 l.4:R ROGERS: If your Honor please, they here bring before

8 your Honor, the qu estion of consent. We have a right to

9 show--

10 THE COURT: Mr Rogers, I am cinvonced you have the right

11 to go into the matter Ollcross-examination. The only ques-

tion is here, whether you have a right to th e question on12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

the voi r dire.

I,
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22s 1 MR. ROGERS· The question comes up at this time, it is
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2 brought by their question of Mrs·. Bain weether or not her

3 consent is not purchased by immunity, whether or not they

4 are giVing her some consideraticn for her testimony, and

5 whether that comes now or conIes later is of small conse-

6 'quence it is true, except we only think--when they ask

7 her a question "do you consent," then we have a right to

8 show that is the price of the testimony against the·

9 defendant •

10 THE COURT" Whether or not she truly consents.

11 1m • ROGERS. Whether or not she truly consents, whether

12 or not as a pr ice of the tes tilIony agains t th e defendan t,

13 upon which they intend to ask his conviction, ahe has not

14 joined this list of immortals, Franklin, White, Bain, Mrs.

15 Bain, Harrington, Krueger, Cooney, Fitzpatrick, Behrn,

16 all of them purchased by immunity to testify agains t

17 Darrow. Now, we have a right to show at once whether or

18 not her consent is, as a matter of fact, a consent, or

19 whether it i8 bougrt as a purcrase price of immunity. We

20 I
I
I

21

22

23

24

25

26

haven't hear d of a prosecution agains t anyone except [,ire

Darrow, and upon that ground when they ask tha t question,

"Do you consent," we have the right, preliminarily, and

on the voir dire, to ask her, isn t t your consent purchased

by ilLn,unity for yourself and inrnunity for your husband and

in::muni ty for Frankl in and irrmuni ty for Whi te and immunity

for Barr ington and immm i ty for Krueger, in fact



this becomes upon the voir dire, it is necessary for them

consent," what is the purchase price of your consent? all

Now, we have a r'ight, just the moment they say, "Do you

man.

37951

I

I
I

i
i
I

for a dozen different people to testify against one1

2

3

4

5 toJ ask that question and it is our right to ask her if

6 her consent is not purchased.

7 THE COURT· Without going in to the ques tion of your right

8 to go into it on cross-examination, 1 do not think you have

9 the right to ask the question at this time and the objec-

10 t ion is sustained.

11 MR. FORD. Will you call Mr. Bain into the court room?

12 MR. ROGERS. IS this Witness sti~l on the stand?

13 MR. FORD' Yes, she is still on the stand. While MI. Bain

14 is coming, 1 want to call your Honor's a ttention to the

15 provisions of Section 1322 of the Penal Code which is

16 I imi ted to its appl icati on in cases where the husband or

17 Wife is a party--

18 THE COUR T. Ther e is nothing before the court at this time,

.19 Mr. Ford •

MR • FORD. Does your Honor cold 1 cannot examine this

wi tneas until 1 s ecur e ~.\r. Bain's cona ent? That is the

20 !
I

I
21 I
22 thing that is before the court. 1 claim that under the

23 law 1 do not have to. The Section reads, "Neither husband

24 or wife is a competent witnesa for or against the other

25 in a criminal action or proceeding to which one or coth

26 are par tiea, except with the consent of both.n



MR. ROGERS. We take an exception to the conduct of the

District Attorney inthe premiaes, as evidenced in court.

T'b.e witness is no t upon the a tand, there is another wi tness

upon the stand. This witness is not sworn, and we have

the rignt, we contend, to show that this testimony is pur­

chased by immuni ty, in other words, that it is bough ten

testimony and not free testimony and it is not Within ~he

provisions of 1322 of the Penal Code.

MR. FORD. 1 am asking ~1r. Bain, your Honor, not as a wit

3796

tion is here that the only partes to this action are the

People of the State 0 f California and the defendant,

Clarence Darrow, and that, therefore, the securing of a

consent of any other person to t~s. Bain testifying is

absolutely unnecessary.
• THE COURT· A~. Bain is here, do you want to ask him?

MR. APPEL· He will have to take the stand, if your Honor

pleas e.

MR. FORD. No, sir. Mr. Bain, 1 ask you in the presence of

the court if you consent to your wife testifyi:r:g in thia

case against Mr. Darrow, and in ao testifying to disclose

any cOffimunica tiona, made by her to you or by you to her or

to state what either you or she did in regard to any

transactions you may have had with Bert Franklin, the

defendant Clarence Darrow, or any other persons connected

with the caGe of the People of the State of California

vs. Clarence Darrow?

25

26

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
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14

15

16
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18

19

20

21

22

23

24



1

2

but as the lusband 0 f the wi tnes8 on the stand if

consents.

3 MR. ROGERS. In the 'presence of the jury, and we take an

4 exception, and we object to it. If they want to put 1u.
5 Bain on the stand and ask him, then we will ask him how

6 • they bought his consent.

7 MR. FORD· You will have an opportunity to cross-examine

8 Mr. Bain later.

9 THE COURT. !I~r. Bain has not answered the qlfBtion.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

MR. roRD. Your Honor will permit him to ansvver the questionr

THE COUR T. Yes.

MR. APPEL· Without being sworn, your Honor?

THE COURT. Yes.

MR • APPEL. We take an exception •.

MR. FORD. Answer 60 the court may hear you.

MR. BA1N· 1 do.

MR. FORD· Your Honor hear him?

THE COURT. Yes, the witness said, "1 do."

MR. APPEL' We ask permission to examine the Witness Bain.

THE COUR T. On the vo ir dir e1



1 ],fR ROGERS: As to \mether or not his consent was ob-
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2 tainred by purchase or promise or any reward or consider­

3 ation.

4 THE COURI.': Application denied.

5 MR APPEL: We take an ex:ception •
• /"-r'

6 /YR FORD: Now, vl.1en did you talk to your liusband aboutv
7 what yr Franklin had said to you on Friday, October 6th,

8 1911?

9 11TR APPEL: We obj ect upon th e ground that no foundation

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

has been laid, upon the further ground that it is incom­

petent, irrelevant and immaterial for any purpose, that it

is collateral to any issue; that it calls for hearsay; that

it calls for declarations made by th e wife to the alleged.

husband, and declarations' by th e husband to the wife,

and no proper foundation has been laid for their introduc-

tion; that there is no SVlOm evidence in this case or any

fact established by sworn testimony, that the husband con­

sented or consents to the witness being examin ad in ref-

erence to a criminal prosecution involved in the inquiry,

and to which both the wife and the hBsband were parties,

and it is otherwise immaterial for any purpose whatsoever.

THE COURT: Overruled.

l,{R APHI: We. take an exc eption.

MR FORD: Answer the question, Urs Baim? A Why, short]y

25 ///after 6 o'clock m.en he came home from \vork --

on th e s arne day? A That sa111e evening.
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Q Who else was present whEn you talked to your husband?

A NObody.

Q Just state to the jur,y what was said by you and your

husband and what he replied.

YR APPEL: Subj ect to the s eme obj ection stated, your
•
Honor, in our first objection to the line of inquiry, and

upon each and all of the grounds stated th erein, and

subj ect to the last obj ection which I made to the witness'

testimony, and upon each and all of the grounds stlted ther"'­

in without repetition of the objection, of the two ob-

j actions and th e grounds thereof.

THE COURr: The obj ection will be (N erruled.

MR APPEL: We take an ecception.

UR FORD: Answer th e question.

A I have been tryi~g eight months to forget that, and

I don,t know '!m.ether I can t ell that.

THE COURT: Did you hear the answer? (Last answer read

by the repo rt er. )

MR APPEL: We move to strike that out as immaterial,

and not responsive.

TIm COURl': Strike it ou t.

A I stated to 1fr Bain what had taken place, what had

been proposed.

MR APIEL: Wait a moment. We obj ~t to re r conclusions,

not responsive to the qu estion.

THE COURT: yes. Read the question, yr Reporter.
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1 (Last question read by the reporter.)

2 THE COURI.': Now, Mrs Bain, that calls for a statement from

3

4

you of wret he said and What you said, and nothing else.,
As nearly as you can give it, from your lbest recollection.

5 A

6
•

I donltt recolla:t much about it. I know that I pur-

suaded him, that is all I remember.

7 lfR FORD: Just give it in sUbstance.

8 MR APPEL: What is the answer?

9 (Last answer read by th e reporter.)

10

11

]JR APPEL: I move to s trike ~t out.

TEE COURT: The word "I know I pursuaded him", is stricken.

12 tou •

13 MR FORD: I withdraw the question.

14 1/Q When your husband came home that evening,

municate to him what lir Franklin htrl told you?

did you com-

----f
~... I

I

16 MR APPEL: Wait a moment. we obj ~t to that -- that is I'
17 I calling for an opinion of the witness and upon each and I

15

MR FORD: If the court please, I believe .that perhaps that

is true, but whether or not a p:!rson made communications

to another is a fact concerning which they may t estify;-

all of the -grounds stated heretofore in our obj ections

THE COURT: I think the witness is able to give that

conversatioru in substance.

upon thesame grounds, can ona y call for a conversa­

tion, and therHie can de tennine whether she communicated

what Franklin said to her.

25

26

18

19

20

21
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23

24
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1 without going into thedetails of the carnnnmication.

2 THE coum: In that event, assuming you are right and I

3 am right, th ere is an unanswered question before the

4 court. It'is a question as to what was said at that

5 time•
•

6 MRFORD: NO, your Honor, I withdrew that question, and

7 asked another question to state whether or not she commu-

8 nicated what Franklin had said to th edefendant I'mean,

23 MR FOBD: Now, without telling us the details of the

24 communication, What, if anythi~~, did you say to your

25 husband, in aidi tion to communicating the f ac ts of Frank-

26 lints conversation?

I

9 said to her husband. Now, of cours e, even though I asked

10 for th at fac t, which can be answered yas or no, even them

11 if I don,t go into thedetails of the communication, counsel

12 will have a right to go into it on c rose-examination, if

13 theydesire, but in order to spare the feelings of the wit­

14 ness, I h8\7'e chosen to confine myself to the bare fact

15 of the communication, which I have a right to dO, if I

16 so desire. If they wish to open it up on c ross-examina-

17 tion more fully, they have a right to do so, but we asked

18 fo r the simple f ac t •

19 - THE COURT: I see your point. Obj ec tion (Jll erruled.

20 MR APPEL: We take an exceptiom.

21 UR FORD: NoV!, read. th e question to th e wi tness. (Last

22 ; /'qu estion read by the repo rter.) ) - A-,



1 MR .APPEL: Wait 8 moment. We object upon the ground
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2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

•

that it calls for hearsay, incompetent, irrelevant and

innmterial, collateral to any issues in thiscase, not

binding upon the def endant, not wen bindirg upon Franklin

as to any matter that she may have said to her husband,

not within her authority, but volunteered on her part,

being matters, which were the creature of her o\vn vol i-

tion, not induced by Franklin, not made ,nth his authortty

or cons ent, no foundation laid; it is incompetent, i rre­

levant and innnaterial for any purpose whatsoever, and

collateral to any issue in this case.

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

I
I
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THE COURT. Objection overruled.

MR. APrEL. We except.

(Last question read.)

MR • APPEL. Jus t a mOIr.en t--may 1 be alloweo. to correct and

modify my objection?
•TEE COUR T. Yes ,sir.

MR. APPEL. 1 object to it on the ground that the witness

has been instructed to keep out of the entire conversa-

tion matters indicated in the question and calling simply

for fragmentary portions of the conversation, and we object·

to that upon the ground stated and upon the decisions we

have here tofore read to the court.

MR. FORD. 1 have cited your Honor to authorities on that

point.

MR. APPEL' In addition to my other grounds of obj ection 1

made heretofore.

THE COURT. Objection overruled.

MR. APPEL' We tak e an except ion.

MR. FORD. Q Answer the question, Vrs, Bain, if you

Alp 1

2

3

4

5

G

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

remember it. Do you want the question read again?
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1

2

3

4

5

i
been required here for certain reasons to abstain'from

saying what she said to her husband, which was in view

of her feelings in the matter, it was a fair consideration

for the witness's feelings, and now, your Honor, she is

asked a bold question, which is as cruel as if she had

6 "been allowed to state what she really said to him. 1 have

7 as much feeling for this witness, perhaps, as anybody else,

8 and if it was permissible, your Honor, to have her abstain

9 from detailing here ad senatim what words she used to her

10 husband, why isn't it for the same reason, your Honor,

11 incompetent to ask this question that she has been asked,

12 if she induced him to do so and so~ We were content with

13 our objection, we did not urge our grounds of objection

14 with as much earnestness as we probably would have qone,

15 in view of the explanation of the counsel, and in view of

16 your Honor's, 1 may say, if 1 properly construe your own

17 idea about it, in view of your sympathy for this witness,

18 in which 1 share. Now, if they ask that, would it be proper

19 your Honor, for us to cross-examine her fully"

20 MR " FORD" 1 withdraw the ques tion •

21 Q After communicating to your husband, Mrs" Bai n, what

22 Mr. Franklin had told you, did you discussthe matter With

23 him? A 1 did"

Mr. Franklin when he calJed on Fr iday night, October 6th?

NOW, you saw ~1r. Franklin on Sunday, night" Did you see

A f did.i didn' t hear the answer.
T

Q

Q25

26

24



3805

What was said and done on that occasion, Mrs. Bain?

1 did!.

I
i

Mr. Bai n and myself and Mr. Franklin.

At the home residence.

A

A

1 didn t t recall.

At what place?

MR. APPEL. She said-- A I did not.

You did see him Sunday night? AQ

Q

Q Who was present?

Q
5

1

2

3

4

6 I •

A The money was handed over, $400 was given to Mr. Bain.

that, that was done Friday night, but Mr. Franklin was to

The same objection.MR • APPEL. I
I

. I
THE COURT~ The same objection, the sarr:e ruling and except~ot

A No, 1 beg your pardon; 1 take that back. 1 didn'rtt; see. I

I
bring the other $100 and he failed to bring it, he was to I

1\

:r ing it, be said. -D
~ow, returning to Friday night, when you got home, did . I!

you talk With your husband about the Franklin matter at ---i~

---rltha t time? A We didn t t speak very much and he handed tee .

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

15

1·1

16

17

18

19

20

21

-----""'i
money over to me, $400. !

Q What, if anything, did he say at that time? A He ~I
banded it to ms. He says. "Here is tbe money, 1 do not"an t~
it, 1 never want to see it." ----r

/
money ~

Q Tha t was in what kind of money? A Paper money, currency \

MR • APPEL. Who said that?

22 MR. FORD. Q NOW, on Sunday night when Franklin viei ted

23

24

you and Mr. Bain, just tell what was said and done by each

of you on th at occas ion, as near as you can r eruember?

25 A When Mr. Franklin first came, Bdl:r::went to the door to m

26 him and 1 came in later and 1 heard them talking. What
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1 passed between them 1 don't know, but Mr. Franklin was

2 giving him instructions--

3 UR. APPEL' Now, then, Your Honor, we insist--

"1 THE COURT· Tell what you heard, if you heard anything.

5 MR. ROGERS. We move to strike out that statement.

6 'fHE COURT. Strike out the words, "Giving him instructions.r
i

same ruling and the same exception.

thing to me, he said not to spend any of that money and to

Mr. Frankl in says, It Now, Bob, donI tA

State what was said, what you heard, if you

Go ahead.

Yes, sir.

Q

QTHE COURT.

MR • FORD.

MR. APPEL· Subject to the same objection and the same rUlin~.

THE qOUR T. Yes, sir, sUbject to the same obj ect ion,- the I

I

I
•

i
you go to work and spend this money, It and he told the same" I

!
i
I

MR • APPEL'

heard anything.13

71
8

9

10

11

12

15

14

23 MR • APPEL

for what money. ~rB. ,Bain? "

be careful and let our bills run and cal] onthe Dis tr ict

Attorney or some one--the District Attorney, 1 think he

said, for our money, and 1 says, 1t~,1r. Franklin, we don It

have tedo that, we always pay our bi l1s first, It and he

"Well, it is best to do that now--"

NOW, your Ponor--

i
I

sayaj
I
I

I

Just a mornent-~call on the District AttrneyQMR. FORD.

19

20

18

21

22

16

24 A '1'he fees--

25 MR. APPEL. --wait a moment. She was stopped right in the

26 midst of a conversation' after she was over it they might
I
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2

3

4
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asked her-

MR • FORD. 1 prefer to ask it th is way.

MR. APPEL We do certainly object to having her interrupt-

ed inthe midst of an explanation, it might disturb the

witness.

question, Mr. Petermichel?

MR. APPEL Wait a moment--we will object to the question

because it calls for her conclusion and opinion. She

may state what was said and we can determine from that

what money was meant. Of course, it is very easy to do

that.

THE COURT. She must not state her conclusion or opinion,

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

•
THE COURT.

MR. APPEL.

MR. FORD.

Obj ect ion overruled.

We except.

Will you read the last answer and the last

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

she must state what was said.

UR. FBEDERICKS' We would like the record read.

TPE COURT ~ Read it.

~HR. FREDERICKS' The question and answer.

(Last question and answer read. )

MR • FORD. Q Did Mr. Franklin say to call on the Dis­

triot Attorney,did he mention what fees it was?

MR • ROGERS. That is obj ec ted to as 1 eadir..g and sugges­

tive. Let her tell what was said by Mr. Franklin and by

herself and by Mr. Bain wi thout suggestion or interruption; I

that is the way it ought to come and the way the jury



1 see no occas ion for that staten:en t, !.ir. Ford,

1

2

3

4

5

ought to hear it.

MR • FORD. The jury will not be allowed to be misled by

THE COURT. Objection overruled.

MR • ROGERS. Well--

THE COURT·

3808
1

I
us. i

I
!
,
i

6 'after the court has ruled on the objection.

7 MR. FORD. 1 beg your Honor 1 8 pardon.

8 MR • APPEL. We take an exception to the remarks of oounsel

9 as to what the jury will do or will not do.

10 THE COURT. Now, let us have an answer to the question,

11 Read the question.

12 (Ques tion read. )

13 A The witness fees.

14 MR. FORD. Q Witness fees?? A Jurors fees.

15 MR. ROGERS, Now, if your Honor please, we get again a

16 leading and suggestive question, and the character of it-

17 let her state what was said and let us find out What was

18 said.

19 A 1 am not used to tl1e court terms,

20
I

21

MR • ROGERS. Of course, Mrs. Bain is not us ed to the

cour t room and Mrs. Bain ought not to be interrupted in that

22 fashion, She ought to be allowed to tell her story; now,

23 c.ounsel puts the warda absolu tely in her mouth,

24 A It was the jurors fees; my husband was on the jury at

26 THE COURT' There is no question but what the question
25 the time.



1

2

was leading, but in the opinion of the court it was a

harml ess ques tion •

3 MR. FORD. Q After he told you to calIon the District

4 Autorney for 'your jurors fees as often as possible, what

5 else was said?

6 'feR • APPEL. Now, your Honor -- I
I

7 MR. ROGERS. she has not said that, "As often as possible"·1

8 MR. FORD. Leave the record show whether she said it or

9 not.

10 MR. APPEJ~· If sbe said that, it is all right.

11 THE COURT. Object ion overruled.

12 MR • APPEL· 1t assumes she said something •

13 A What was the question?

14 MR • FORD. Q Jus t tell us what Mr. Fr ankl in said on that

15 subject, and all about it.

16 MR. ROGERS. There you go, now, let her go.

17 A Bob asked him if he had brough t the other hundred

18 dollars as he promised and he said, "No," he says, "1 am a

------

little Short," but he says, "1 Will give you that with the

other, 1 will give you the $3600 When, you are through with

it--when the trial is ended." He says, "You know 1 am

good for it, don't you, Bob?" and Bob said, "yes'" he

says, "You ar e all right." That is about all 1 remember",

THE COURT· ;he tiree for adjournment has come, gentlemen.

(Jury admonished.) The court will now adjourn until fri-

day rrorning, July 5, at 10 o'clock A.M. (Bere the court
adjourned until Fr iday, July 5, 1912, 10 o'clock A.ll.)
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